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Oklahoma Agency

of Excellence.

May 14,2024

Ms. Amber Edwards
Environmental Programs Manager
Land Protection Division
Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality
707 North Robinson
P.O. Box 1677
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 7 3I0I -167 7

RE Financial Strength Information and
Closure Post Closure Cost Adjustment2024
Grand River Dam Authorify (GRDA)
Grand River Energy Center (GREC) Landfill
Chouteau, Mayes County, Oklahoma
Solid Waste Permit No.3549012

Dear Ms. Edwards:

GRDA is submitting Financial Strength Information to support utilization of the

Corporate Financial Test as the mechanism for financial assurance of the above
referenced landfill.

This information is being submitted in accordance with the financial assurance
requirements as found in OAC 252:517-17-81of the Oklahoma Disposal of Coal
Combustion Residuals From Electric Utilities regulations.

Information being provided includes

o A demonstration of financial assurance for closure and post-closure costs,

signed by the GRDA Chief Financial Officer/Corporate Treasurer of
GRDA

o Independent accountant's report on applying agreed upon procedures
o The independent auditor's report embedded in the financial statements of

GRDA
o The 2024 worksheet for calculating closure and post-closure cost

estimates
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Page2 of 2

As required, a copy of this information is being placed into the operating record of the facility

If you have any questions on this matter, or if you require any additional information, please do

not hesitate to contact me,

Sincerely,

fuJ,rl
Michael L. Bednar

Manager of Environmental Compliance
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Oklahoma Agency

of Excellence.

May 1,2024

Ms. CarolBartlett
Environmental Program Specialist
Land Protection Division
Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality
PO Box 1677
Oklahoma City, Oklah oma 7 3 7 01 -1 67 7

Ms. Bartlett,

I am the Chief Financial Officer of the Grand River Dam Authority, an agency of
the State of Oklahoma, with its principal place of business located in Mayes

County, Oklahoma. This letter is in support of this agency's use of the financial test

to demonstrate financial assurance for closure and/or post-closure costs as specified

in27A O.S. Sections 2-10-701(CX6) and OAC 252:517-17.

This agency is the owner or operator of the following facilities for which financial
assurance for closure or post-closure care is demonstrated in accordance with the

Oklahoma Administrative Code and the Oklahoma Solid Waste Management Act.
We have updated our estimates, and the current closure andlor post-closure cost

estimates covered by the test are shown for each facility:

GRDA Units No. I and No.2 Fly Ash Disposal Closure: S1,817,384.88

Chouteau, Oklahoma Post-Closure: $1,925,941.39

The effective date of the response is for the fiscal year of this agency which ends

on December 31,2023. The figures for the following items marked with an asterisk

are derived from this agency's independently audited, year-end financial statements

for the latest completed fiscal year ended 2023:

l. Sum of current closure and post-closure cost estimates: S1,817,384.88

Closure and $1 ,925,941.39 Post-Closure for a sum of $3,743,326.27.

2. Current bond ratings of the most recent issuance of this firm and name of
rating service: Al Moody's Investors Service, Inc., AA- Standard & Poor's

Rating Services, A+ Fitch Ratings, Ltd.
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3. Date of issuance of bond: December 21,2023
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Date: May 1,2024

ADMINISTRATIC)N
PO Box 669
Chouteau, oK743:t7
91B-256-5545

4. Date of maturity of bond:2030-2042

5. Tangible net worth: 9953,441,346

6. Total assets in the United States: $2,244,590,229

7. Is line 5 at least $10 Million? Yes

8. Is line 5 at least 6 times line l? Yes

9. Are at least 90% of firm's assets located in the United States? Yes

10. Is line 6 at least 6 times line 1? Yes

I hereby certify that the representations made in this are, to the best of my

knowledge, true and accurate.

D@osiqned by:

s@*
Erik Feighner

Chief Financial Officer
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lndependent Accountants' RePort

Grand River Dam AuthoritY and
Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the accompanying letter dated May 1,2024from
Grand River Dam Authoiity (the Authority) to the oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality regarding

the compliance with the financial test opiion as of December 31, 2023. Grand River Dam Authority is

responsible for the compliance with the aforementioned financial test.

Grand River Dam Authority has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate

to meet the intended purp6se of the engagement to assist the Authority and the Oklahoma Department

of Environmental Quality in evaluating the Authority's compliance with the financial test option as of

December 31,2023, inituded in the accompanying letter. Additionally, Oklahoma Department of

Environmental Quality has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate

to meet its purposes.-This ref,ort may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed

may not ad'dress all the items of inteiest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users

of t'his report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are

appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

. We compared the tangible net worth amount included in item 5 of the letter referred to above with the

corresponding ending-net position balance in the basic financial statements of the Authority as of and

for the year enOeO December 31,2023 and noted that such amounts are in agreement.

o We compared the total assets in United States amount included in item 6 of the letter referred to

above with the corresponding total assets balance in the basic financial statements of the Authority as

of and for the year ended Deiember 31,2023 and noted that such amounts were in agreement.

. We multiplied the sum of closure and post-closure cost estimates in item 1 of the letter by 6 and

noted that the tangible net worth amount in item 5 of the letter is greater than the product of this

multiplication.

o We multiplied the sum of closure and post-closure cost estimates in item 1 of the letter by 6 and

noted that the amount of total assets in the United States of America included in item 6 of the letter is

greater than the product of this multiplication.

We were engaged by Grand River Dam Authority to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
_

conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American lnstitute of

Certified Public ACcountants. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review

engagement, the objective of which would be ihe expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on

.oi1p'ii"n"" regarding the accompanying letter dated May 1,2024 and the information contained therein.

Accordingly, *l Oo n-ot express suchan opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures,

ottrer maiteis might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as
are separate and independent

Baker Tilly, is a member of the global nelwo(_of Baker Tilly lnternational Ltd., the members of which

legal entities. A2020-2022 BakerTilly US, LLP

1



We are required to be independent of Grand River Dam Authority and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures

engagement.

This report is intended solely for and the use of Grand River Dam Authority and Oklahoma Department of
Environmental Quality and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

g,/.^f"% 04LLr
Madison, Wisconsin
May 13,2024
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lndependent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
Grand River Dam Authority

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Grand River Dam Authority (GRDA), as of and
for the years ended December 31,2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the GRDA's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the GRDA as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in financial position

and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basrb for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the GRDA and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the GRDA's ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Baker Tilly US, LLe trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly lnternational Ltd., the members of which
are separate and independent legal entities . @ 2020-2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP
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Auditors'Responsrbilifies tor the Audit of the Financial Sfatements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a

substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a

reasonable user based on the financial statements.

ln performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Sfandards, we:

. Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the GRDA's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that

raise substantial doubt about the GRDA's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable

period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Req u i red S u p plementary I nfo rm atio n

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required

supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or

historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

a

a
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Goyem ment Auditing Sfandards, we have also issued our report dated April 30,2024 on

our consideration of the GRDA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that

report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance

and the resulti of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the GRDA's internal control

over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance

with Goyern ment Auditing Standards in considering the GRDA's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

6/.^f,.% o5/ LLf
Madison, Wisconsin
April 30,2024
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Management's Discussion and Analysis - Unaudited
The following discussion and analysis of the Grand River Dam Authority's (GRDA or the Authority) financial performance

provides an overview of the Authority's financial activities for the year ended December 37,2023, and provides a comparison

with the prior years' financial results. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements which follow this section.

USING THIS FINANCIAL REPORT

This annual financial report consists ofa series offinancial statements and reflects the self-supporting, proprietary activities

of the Authority, funded primarily by the sale of electrical power and energy'

The State of Oklahoma reports the business-type activities of the Authority as a discretely presented major component unit.

The basic financial statements presented in this report consist of the Statements of Net Position; the Statements of Revenues,

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; the Statements of Cash Flows; and the Notes to Financial Statements.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION; STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES lN NET

POSITION; STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS; AND NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority's Statements of Net Position and Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provide an

indication of the Authority's financial health.

The Statements of Net Position report all of the Authority's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred

inflows ofresources, using the accrual basis ofaccounting, as well as an indication ofwhich assets can be used for general

purposes and which are restricted as a result ofbond covenants, contracts, or for other purposes.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report all of the Authority's revenues and expenses

recognized during the time periods indicated.

The Statements of Cash Flows report the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well as other cash sources, such as

investment income or bond proceeds, and other cash uses, such as cash payments for repayment of bonds and capital additions.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional explanation and detail about the financial information, as well as

required disclosures.

FlNANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance of the Authority in 2023 was exceptionally strong as it embraced "New Beginnings". The

Authorify completed several milestones in 2023 and began several projects that will shape the Authority over the coming

years.

On August g, 2023, the Authority's Board of Directors approved the purchase of a new Mitsubishi gas combustion

turbine/generator and related services to build Grand River Energy Center ("GREC") unit number 4 which will have a

nameplate capacity of 428 MW, ("GREC 4"). GREC 4 will replace the 520 MW coal-fired generating unit ("GREC 2").

The Authority is targeting the summer of 2026 for the completion of GREC 4, at which time, GREC 2 will begin the

decommissioning process. In support of the construction of GREC 4, the Board authorized the issuance of up to $475 million

in funds through a series of bond offerings. The Authority issued $205 million of par value bonds in December 2023 resulting

in a total of $230.8 million in proceeds after issuance costs of $0.8 million. The Authority is planning to issue the remaining

$270 million in authorized bonds in the summer of 2024.

4



Mana8ement's Discussion and Analysis - unaudited

Additionally, in June of 2023, the Authority implemented a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system across the

Authority that will continue to lead to efficiencies and better reporting capabilities.

And finally, in2023,the Authority completedthe construction on the Waters of Oklahoma and Arkansas (WOKA) waterpark

and began operations in September of 2023. The waterpark is a project of GRDA and the City of Siloam Springs with

support from the Walton Family Foundation for design and construction of the park. GRDA operates the waterpark as part

of its natural stewardship footprint along the Illinois River that it took on when it absorbed the Oklahoma Scenic Rivers

Commission in2016

1n2023, the Authority continued to see a positive trend in the growth of base Power Sales as the result of decades of

commitment from wholesale customers and continuing growth from the industrial sector customers. Base Power Sales grew

$8.1 million or 3Yo in 2023, including an increase of $9.4 million, or l0 %o from our indushial and commercial customers.

See "Sales of Power" table and further discussion in Operating Results herein.

ln2022,the Authority experienced strong growth as well with base power sales increasing $14.6 MM or 60/o. and operating

income increasing $21.3 million or l9%u

Results for 2021 were affected by Winter Storm Uri which impacted the Authority and much of the Southwest Power Pool

(SPP) footprint, during which temperatures reached double-digit negative values. The extreme cold temperatures, over

multiple days, combined with the lack of both solar and wind generation was further complicated by a limited natural gas

supply. During this event, the Authority incurred unprecedented natural gas and purchased power prices resulting in a

financial impact to the Authority totaling 5102.4 million. The Authority was able to fund the event entirely through cash

reserves and began recovering these costs in 2021 over the next 120 months through a modification to the Power Cost

Adjustment (PCA) rate schedule. As of December 31,2023, $49.9 million of the Winter Storm Uri costs are outstanding,

including $6.5 million reflected in current assets. See Footnote I for further discussion of the PCA, and the three recovery

options offered to customers.

As part of the December 2023 bond offering process, on November 22,2023, S&P Global affrmed the GRDA rating AA-, with

a stable outlook and Moody's affirmed its rating of A1 with a stable outlook on December 1,2023, and again on April 5,2024.

Additionally, Fitch affirmed its A+ rating with a stable outlook on March 13, 2024. Allthree afflrrmations were largely due to the

Authority's continuing fnancial health. S&P noted robust unrestricted cash balances and liquidity, as well as strong fixed charge

coverage and good operating performance of the main generating units. Moody's noted GRDA's contractual nature of cash flow,

unregulated rate setting abilities and its diverse and competitively priced resource mix as key reasons for its rating.

-5-



Management's Discussion and Analysls - Unaudlted

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS. DECEMBER 31, 2023,2022, AND 2021

2023 2022 202L

CONDENSED SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION

Assets:

Current assets

Net utility plant

Noncurrent investments

Under recovered power costs

Nonutility plant

Pension benefit assets

Other noncurrent assets

231,865,580

r,239,058,362
664,532,886

43,413,333

40,tL2,548

311,285,630

L,2L7,O97,589

293,3L8,72L

49,610,150

34,237,907

228,442,359

r,2t3,283,232
345,227,973

62,197,807

23,25t,235
30,042,207

5,543,07125,607,520 70,766,703

Total assets 2,244,590,229 1,9L6,376,700 1,907,987,884

Deferred outflows related to pension plans

Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits

Deferred outflows related to loss on reacquired debt

L5,997,469
t,68O,4L5

L8,826,324

L5,678,t74

24,558,350

2,369,786

21,654,847

4,026,920

5,375,121
3,110,655

24,650,250

Deferred outflows related to derivative hedges

Tota I deferred outflows 53, t82,382 52,609,903 33, L36,026

Liabilities:

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

155,159,360

L,Oot,769,707

102,751,855

996,540,722

88,822,985

930,982,609

Total liabilities 1,2L6,929,067 999,292,577 1,019,805,594

Deferred inflows related to pension plans

Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits

Deferred inflows related to regulated operations

Deferred inflows related to derivative hedges

t,013,573
3,7L2,4O4

122,676,22L

2,L1.L,28t

2,305,327

121,300,297

36,383,164
494,229

LOO,674,199

5,001,140

Total deferred inflows L27,4O2,t98 125,7t6,9O5 L42,552,732

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Capital reserve fund

Special reserve and contingency fund

Debt service

Pension benefits

Other special purposes

Unrestricted

393,345,440 345,268,266 317,1.17,339

2,9t6,947
32,649,598

28,7L4,583

7,906,994

50,383,000

25,L29,999

9,921,898

50,383,000

24,310,4L7

30,042,207

2,L06,229

344,884,494
2,L46,836

493,667,942

2,086,r39
4L3,242,723

Total net position 953,441,346 843,977,12L 778,765,584

-6-



Management's Discusiion and Analysis " unaudited

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - DECEMBER 31, 2023,2022, AND 2021 (continued)

2023 2022 202L

CONDENSED SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating revenues:

Sales of power

Other operating revenues

Regulatory revenues

496,664,358

74,097,t44
4,L95,8L2

589,878,953

75,348,353

2,977,337

534,2O2,694

43,686,459

t,894,078

Total operating revenues 574,957,3t4 668,204,643 579,783,231

Non-operating revenues:

lnvestment income-net

Award revenue (loss) - operating

lncome (loss) - nonoperating

lncome from nonutility operations

Costs (recovered) to be recovered

25,Ltg,473
330,388

(1,351,585)

(2,473,75t!'
(s,626,159)

(29,1O7,6701

59,951

(5,207,691)

(1,852,356)

(23,6s7,9871

(5,O7L,4291

t4,t97

(5,782,860)
(13,987,866)

Total non-operating revenues 16,988,356 (59,765,753) (24,827,958)

Total revenues 591,945,680 608,438,890 554,955,273

Operating expenses:

Fuel

Purchased power - net

Operations
Depreciation

Maintenance

Administrative and general

(139,829,853)

(92,498,500)

(84,990,303)

(75,872,8351

(30,815,595)
(30,265,2961

(186,042,989)

(L49,404,LL2')

(84,078,L73)

(62,844,949)

(26,966,147)
(23,89s,7321

(176,955,635)

(L75,552,213)

(71,525,025)

(61,722,4\0)

(24,000,269)

(16,339,863)

Total operating expenses (454,273,5941 (s33,232,!02) (466,09s,41s)

Non-operating expenses:

lnterest expense

Amortization of debt discount

Amortization of bond premium

(42,464,5551

1820,7561

I,t76,086

(43,853,908) (45,821,0691

(106,750)

9,677,196 t0,t87,tO6

Total non-operating expenses (34,109,22sl (34,283,4621 (3s,633,963)

Total expenses (488,382,819) (567,515,564) (5O!,729,378)

Award revenue - capital 5,961,364 24,228,21.1 15,529,534

Net increase in net position LO9,524,225 65,L5t,537 68,755,429

Net position - beginning of year 843,9t7,L2t 778,765,584 710,0L0,L55

Net position - end of year 953,44t,345 843,9t7,12t 778,765,584
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ManaBement's Dlscussion and Analysis - unaudited

The financial results are further discussed in the following paragraphs and reflect the financial impact of the highlights

mentioned above.

NET POSITION

The balance ofNet position increased by $ 109.5 million in2023, which represents a l3Yo increase, following a $65.2 million,

or anSYo growth, in2022.The2023 increase was mainly attributable to an increase in Investment income - net of $55.2

million, $7.9 million increase in Sales of Power, net of Fuel and Purchased power-net, offset by $24.2 million higher non

Fuel and Purchased power-net operating expenses. The 2022 increase'was mainly attributable to an increase in Sales of
power of $55.9 million and a $31.7 million increase in Other operating revenues.

Total assets increased by $32S.3 million driven by the $230.8 million of cash proceeds net of issuance costs from the

December 2023 bond offering. In addition, GRDA collected all of the under recovered power costs and an additional $44.6

million at December 37,2023 was over collected. Additionally, Net utility Plant increased $22.0 million, including $37.4

million increase in Construction - Work in Progress primarily related to costs paid for GREC 4, offset by $13 million of
increased depreciation expense due in part to accelerated depreciation on GREC 2 balances from a reduced useful life due

to a revised retirement date of 2026 versus 2030.

These changes in Total Assets in 2023 follow an $8.3 million increase in 2022 equating to a lYo increase over 2021. The

2022 increase was due to the increase of $1 1.0 million in Nonutility plant as GRDA continued the construction of WOKA
whitewater park. Additionally, the pension asset of $30.0 million was eliminated as market conditions drove the Authority's
Net pension position back to a liability. This was offset by a $3 1.4 million increase in cash and investments.

Current assets decreased by $79.4 million , or 26To, following a 2022 $82.8 million , or 36oh, increase. Current cash and

investments totaled $97.1 million in2023, compared to $144.1 million in2022 representing a decrease of $47.0 million, or

33oh year over year. The 2023 decrease is due to a shift from current cash and investments to noncurrent cash investments

due to amounts reinvested atyear end. This contrasts with a $83.4 million increase from202l to2022 that was due to the

liquidation of investments and the use of cash to meet obligations resulting from Winter Storm Uri. Accounts receivable

decreasedby$5.8million, orllYoin2023,followingadecrease in2022 of $l8.8million, or26%o.The2023 decreasewas

due to lower electricity sales in November2023 due to the reduced PCA rate recovered compared to 2022.The2022 detease

was driven by Winter Storm Uri. For more information on the PCA, see the Operating revenues section herein or Under/Over

Recovered Fuel Costs in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Note I to Financial Statements. Fuel stock has

grown throughout2023 to an overall increase of $5.6 million, or 53o/o, as the Authority has taken efforts to increase coal on

hand and the it experienced milder temperatures in November and December of 2023. Fuel stock also increased by $3.6

million, or 5lYo, in 2022 as the Authority took efforts to increase coal on hand heading into the winter months. Materials

and supplies increased slightly from $50.2 million in2022 to $52.5 million in2023, which equates to an increase of 4%u

Noncurrent investments increased by $371.2 million, or l27oh, in2023, following a $51.9 million decrease of lSYo, in 2022.

As mentioned above in Total Assets, the2023 increase was due to the $230.8 million in net cash proceeds received form the

December 2023 bond offering and a shift in investment from current to noncurrent., The lower amounts for 2022 were due

to the liquidation of investments and use of cash to meet obligations resulting from Winter Storm Uri. Additional information

about the Restricted Investments, included in Noncurrent investments, is presented in Note 2 to Financial Statements,

Deposits and Investments. Restricted Assets are discussed later in more detail in the Significant Assets and Debt

Administration section.

Net utility plant fluctuated by less than 2%o from 2022 to 2023, increasing by $22.0 million. For 2022, Net utility plant

increased by $3.8 million, or lYo. While Net utility plant, which encompasses the Authority's electric system remains mostly

level, the Nonutility Plant of GRDA continues to grow. As mentioned above, this is due to the construction of the WOKA
whitewater park that went into service in September 2023. Specific projects are described in the Capital Assets section below,

and more information is presented in Note 4 to Financial Statements, Utility Plant.

Other noncurrent assets increased by $14.8 million, or l38o/o, in 2023, following an increase of $5.2 million, ot 94Vo, in

2022. Other noncurrent assets are made up mostly of long-term deposits, long-term accounts receivable, and long-term

hedging derivatives. The Authority maintains deposits with the Southwest Power Pool and StoneX Financial Inc. The
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increase in2023 is due primarily to the $14.8 million increase in amounts on deposit with StoneX Financial at December

31,2023 due to the historically low natural gas prices and the resulting price difference from our executed commodity

contracts.

Defened outflows of resources remained flat with an increase of $0.6 million, or 7%o, in 2023, after they decreased by $ 19.5

million, or 59%o,in2022. The variance explanation is described in detail within Defened Outflows of Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources below. For more information, see Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans, Postretirement,

and Other Employee Benefits.

Totalliabilitiesincreasedby$;2l7.6million, or22o/o,in2023,afteradecreaseof$20.5million, ot2o/o,in2022. Thisincrease

is made up of a increase in Total noncurrent liabilities of $165.2 million, or 78%o, and an increase in Total current liabilities

of $52.4 million, or 51oh. The overall increase in Total liabilities in 2023 is primarily due to the $230.8 million of net

proceeds from the December 2023bondoffering and the $44.6 million of over recovered power costs. These increases were

offset by $43.1 million in bond principal payments.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased by $ I . I million, or 2%o, in 2023, after experien cing a 2022 increase of
$12.7 million,or29Yo.The2022 increase was driven almost exclusively by the increase in payables relatedto increased

prices for natural gas. The current portion of Bonds payable increased in 2023 as debt service requirements rose increasing

by $6.I million after also increasing by $ 1.4 million in2022. The Decemb er 2023 bond issuance did not impact the current

portion of bonds payable as the first principal payments related to this offering do not start until 2030.

The noncurrent portion of Bonds payable increased by $173.2 million, or20Yo,in2023 due to the $230.8 million in net

proceeds from the December 2023 offering offset by $43.1 million of principal payments made in 2023,Ln2022, noncurrenl

portion of Bonds payable declined by $52.8 million, or 6oh.The2022 decrease was due to bond principal retirements, netted

with bond premium amortizations. More detail can be found in the Long-Term Debt section below. The Liabilities related

to pension plans decreased by $7.3 million in 2023 after a2022 increase of $21.1 million. The Authority's pension liability
became a pension asset for the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) plan in 2021, then reverted to a

liability again in 2022. More information is presented on these plans in Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans,

Postretirement, and Other Employee Benefits.

Defened inflows of resources increased by $1.7 million, or lo/o, following a decrease of $16.8 million or 72Yo,in2022.The

variance explanation is described in detail within Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources below.

For more information, see Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans, Postretirement, and Other Employee Benefits.

Restricted amounts for net investment in capital assets increased by $48.1 million, or 48Yo, in2023, following an increase

of $28.2 million, or 9Yo, itt 2022. The Restricted capital reserve funds decreased $4.9 million or 630/o and Special reserve

and contingency fund decreased $17.7 million or 35Yo in2023. 1n2022, the capital reserve fund decreased $2.1 million or

2lTo and the Special reserve and contingency fund had no change in 2022. For more information on these funds, see Note 2

to Financial Statements, Deposits and Investments.

Unrestricted net position represents the part of Net position used to finance day-to-day operations, without constraints

established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, including Board designation, or other legal agreements. This amount

increased by $80.4 million or l9%o in 2023 and $68.4 million, or 20%o, in 2022.
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OPERATING RESULTS

The Authority's2023 and2022 operating results were driven by the continued increases in Base Power Sales and Other

operating revenues. Sales ofPower include the contract and non-contract revenues, also referred to Base Power Sales, and

the recovery of Fuel Costs recovered through the PCA. Due to the fluctuations in fuel costs, total Sales of Power can

fluctuate materially from year to year. Ln2023, Base Power Sales increased $8.1 million or 3Yo and $14.6 or 6Yo in2022.

The graph titled "Net Purchased Power (MWh)"
depicts the Authority's hourly net purchases of energy

from the Integrated Marketplace. Due to the

historically low prices for natural gas experienced in

2023 and the continued growth of renewable

generation like wind and solar, net purchased power
increased in2023. The lower power costs made it more

economically beneficial to purchase our customers'

electricity needs from the integrated marketplace than

to operate certain generation assets of the Authority.
Additionally, market purchases spiked in April and

October during seasonal maintenance periods for
GREC 2 and GREC 3.
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See the graphs titled "Pensacola Dam Generation (MWh)" and "Robert S. Kerr Dam Generation (MWh)" for hydro

generation comparisons of 2021,2022,and2023,as comparedtotheten-yearhistorical average. The areas of Southeast

Kansas and Northeast Oklahoma that make up the watershed to the Grand River and Neosho River which feed into

Grand Lake (Pensacola Dam) and Hudson Lake (Roberts S. Kerr Dam), experienced another year of below average

rainfall. With the reduced rainfall in2023 and2022, production from both facilities trended significantly below the

ten-year average.
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The Authority's energy resources have included wind, through purchased power agreements, since 2013. The energy

produced from these projects is recorded as Purchased Power. The wind purchase agreements provide risk mitigation

against increases in fuel costs and help expand the Authority's diversified energy portfolio as demand for carbon-free

energy grows.

The graphs titled "Natural Gas (MWh)" and "Coal (MWh)" reflect the output of the Authority's thermal generation

resources. As demonstrated by the graph titled "Coal (MWh)," the generation for coal decreased again in 2023 as low

natural gas prices caused a increase in the usage of natural gas generation across the SPP footprint including GRDA's

generation from GREC 3 and Redbud as shown in the graph titled "Natural Gas (MWh). Coal generation continued to

decrease in 2023 that is below the l0-year average as coal generation prices were previously uneconomical when

compared to both natural gas generation and the overall available SPP Integrated Marketplace energy. The decrease versus

the lQ-year average also reflects the April 2017 discontinuation of GREC 1 as a coal-fired generating unit, which was

formally retired from assets as of December 31, 2021 . As natural gas prices rose over the course of 2022, coal became

competitive in the SPP market and neared or exceeded the ten-year average for many months in 2022.T\e graph titled

"Natural Gas (MWh)" indicates the competitiveness of both GREC 3 and Redbud, as they are routinely called upon to

provide energy into the SPP Integrated Marketplace during the summer months when generation demands are generally the

highest. Routine outages are scheduled for shoulder months in the spring and fall when demands for generation are lower

across SPP.
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Though its impact has remained immaterial to the financial results, the Authority has continued to expand and strengthen its

Energy Hedging Program, with the intent of managing market, counterparty, volume, budget, regulatory, model, and

operations risks through Risk Management Policies. The Board of Directors of the Authority is responsible for an overall

understanding of risks and the intemal Risk Oversight Committee is responsible for primary operational risk oversight and

the implementation of the Risk Management Policies. The Energy Hedging Program has three essential objectives: (1)to

achieve a customer power cost to serve native load and off-system firm load at a cost that is materially close to the budgeted

amount; (2) to reduce the Authority's exposure to volatile swings in energy and hedging costs and to limit the uncertainty

related to market timing when purchasing fuel-related hedges by purchasing a portion of required hedges on a programmatic

basis; and (3) to maintain a degree of flexibility allowing the Authority to benefit from a favorable energy market. As these

transactions relate to natural gas, realized gains and losses, as a result ofthese hedges, are recognized as fuel expense. See

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources for further discussion.
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2023 Energy Resources (MWh) 2022 Enet gy Resources (MWh)

I Gas I Coal I Hydro .' Wind Purchases I other Purchases I Gas lCoal r Hydro F! \ivind Purchases I Other Purchases

The graphs titled"2023 Energy Resources (MWh)" and"2022 Energy Resources (MWh)" indicate the energy resource

mix upon which GRDA relies to meet its customers' load needs. The availability of adequate generation capacity, along

with i reliable transmission system, firm customer contracts, and participation in the SPP Integrated Marketplace,

ultimately drive the operating and financial results. Ln2023, natural gas made up a majority of the generation due to

historicaily low natural gas prices and lower hydro generation due to decreased rainfall, The hydro units continue to play

a vital roie in bottr relLUitity and available capacity. Likewise, wind purchases remained an equitable share of the

Authority's generation portfolio for the last two years. The Authority has a generation portfolio that provides diversity and

employs a team experienced in power marketing that uses those resources, in conjunction with the hedging program, to

minimize risks and volatility for the Authority.

OPERATING INCOME

Total operating revenues

Total operati ng expenses

Operating lncome

Operatlng lncome

2023 2022

5 574,957,3L4 5 668,204,643

(454,2t3,5941 (533,232,102)

202L

5 579,783,23r

(466,095,415)

st2o,583,720 5L34,972,54L s 113,587,815

Operating Income decreased $14.3 million in2023 or llo/o. The decrease was driven primarily by $13.0 million in higher

depreciation costs related to accelerated depreciation associated with the estimated useful life of GREC 2 from 2030 to2026

when the construction of GREC 4 is estimated to be completed. Additionally, the Authority experienced $6.4 higher

administrative and general costs due to $3.3 million in higher pension costs, $0.9 million higher insurance costs and various
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other costs associated with the new ERP. \n2022, operating income increased by $21.3 million, or 19%o due primarily to

$3 1.7 million in higher Other operating revenue. Operating Revenues decreased by $93.2 million, or 74%o,in2023, after a

2022 increase of $88.4 million, or l5o/o. The decrease in2023 was driven by the lower cost of fuel and power that the

Authority recovers in revenue.

Other Operating Revenues include recovery of revenue requirements for transmission plant recovered through the SPP's

administration of the transmission tariffs, as well as revenues associated with an Integrated Transmission Agreement

(lTA), and revenues from an agreement with The Energy Authority (TEA) related to the management of excess Auction

Revenue Rights (ARR's) in the Spp Integrated Marketplace. It also includes revenues from the sales of Renewable Energy

Certificates (RECs) and lake-related revenues and NOx allowances.

Non-operating Revenues primarily include investment income, changes in the fair value of investments' and the deferral

of revenue associated with third party contributions to the construction of capital assets. Non-operating Revenues

increased in2023 after trending down in successive years, increasing $76.7 million, or l28oh, in2023, after a $34'9

million decrease of l4lyo, in 2022.lnvestment Income - Net, which includes changes in the fair value of investments,

were $55.3 million higher than those in2022. 2022 amounts were $24.0 million less than those in 2021. Non-Operating

Revenues also increased from a decrease in deferral of costs to be recovered of $18.0 million in2023 than in 2022 and

$9.7 million more in 2022thanin202l.

Operating Expenses decreased by $79.0 million or 75o/o in2023 made up primarily of the $103.1 combined decrease in fuel

undpur"hur.powercosts. Thisdecreasewasoffsetbyincreasesof$13.0millioninhigherdepreciationcostsrelatedto
acceierated depreciation associated with the estimated useful life of GREC 2 from 2030 to 2026. Additionally, the Authority

experienced $0.+ trigh.r administrative and general costs due to $3.3 million in pension costs, $0'9 million in higher

insurance costs, and various costs associated with the new ERP. operating expenses also increased in2022 by $67.1 million,

or l4yo. For 20D2,all classes of expenses were greater than202l. Purchased Power was $33.9 million more than 2021, and

Operation Expenses were $12.6 million more. The other driver of the Operating Expenses increase was an increase in

Administrative and General Expenses in the amount of $7.6 million.

Award Revenue - Capital includes customer conhibutions, grant proceeds, and insurance revenues for capital asset additions.

portions of these revenues were deferred by the Authority in accordance with GASB Statement No' 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements

(GASB 62*), which is discussed in further detail in Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources.

OPERATING REVENUES

As stated previously, Operating Revenues decreased $93.2 million in2023 or l4Yo driven primarily by lower cost of fuel

and power that the Authority recovers in revenue. Fuel and power costs recovered in Revenues fot 2023 decreased S I 03. 1 .

Base power Revenues were up $8.1 or 3oh. The increase was driven by continued growth of retail industrial customers

increasing $9.4 MM or l}vooffset by small decreases in sales to wholesale customers of $1.5 million of l%. Sales in2022

increased by $88.4 million , or 75Yo driven by increases in Sales of Power, which increased by $55.7 million, ot llVo in2022,

due to increased growth of industrial load in the MidAmerica Industrial Park (MAIP), increasing 11o/o in MWh sales in 2022-

Other Operating Revenues, as mentioned previously, include recov_e-ry of revenue requirements for transmission plant

'.."our.ri 
throrfuh the Spp;s administration of the tiansmission tariffs, as well as revenues associated with an ITA, and

revenues from a-n agreement with TEA related to the management of excess Auction Revenue Rights 4,\R't in.the SPP

Integrated Marketplace. Other Operating Revenues decreased $ 1.3 million in 2023 after an increase of $3 1'7 million, or

lZyl in 2022. Over 50% of Othei Operating Revenue in 2023 and 2022 is attributable to the TEA agreement.

The Authority is empowered to set rates, as necessary, to provide for recovery of operating expenses and.debt service

payments. W"hen deemed necessary and approved by the Board of Directors, rates can be raised by providing at least

bo Auyr' notice to the Authority's-customers. By siatute, the Authority is a self-regulated entity and its rates-do not

come under the jurisdiction of tire oklahoma Coiporation Commission. The rates charged by the Authority_for the sale

of electric po*.i and energy are not currently regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or any

other state or federal authirity; however, Chna's transmission tariff is filed and approved by FERC, as part of the
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Spp open access tariff. In April 2024, the Board of Directors approved a series of rate increases over the next three

y"u6 ihut become effective on October 1 of each year. The aggregate increase for2024,2025, and2026 is l.48Yo

2.7 4% and 3.39Yo resPectivelY.

Oklahoma law requires the Authority to maintain rates which are sufficient to produce adequate revenues to fulfill the

obligations of the Authority. These obligations include payment of all maintenance and operation expenses, interest, and

priniipal ofall bonds, sinking fund and/or reserve fund payments agreed to be made in respect ofany such bonds, and any

bttrer bbligations or ug.....nt, made with the holder of such bonds and/or with any person on behalf of such holder. The

Authority agreed with its customers not to adopt or charge excess rates and to ensure rates will be applied in a reasonable,

and not unAirty discriminatory, manner to all customers served under the same rate schedules at the same service level.

The Authority's rates have three main components: demand, energy, and PCA. The amount of the rate is dependent upon

the level of service for which the customer his contracted: generation bus, transmission, primary distribution, or distribution.

The PCA is an adjustment mechanism that allows the

Authority to recover Fuel and Purchased Power costs,

for contract sales to wholesale and retail customers,
over a rolling twelve-month period. Prior to April 1,

2019, the Authority's base energy rates included an

estimated power cost (fuel and purchased power) of
23 mills per kWh. Effective April I , 20 19, the 23 mills
per kWh of estimated power cost was restructured out

ofthe base rate and into the PCA recovery calculation.

In202l, the Authority amendedthe schedule PCA to

include a new component, referred to as PCAx, which is
designed to recover Extraordinary Power Cost (EPC)

events. EPC events are designated by the Board of
Directors. The costs associated with an EPC event can

be recovered from customers via three options: (1)

PCAx-120 - EPC Customer pays its Customer Costs via

not more than 120 monthly payments' This method does

accrue additional EPC Carrying Costs for financing. (2)

pCAx-12 - EpC Customer pays its Customer Costs via not more than 12 monthly payments. This method does not accrue

additional carrying costs foi financing. (3) PCAx-Base - EPC Customer pays the original l2-month PCA calculation under

the PCA in plate during the EPC event. This amount varies monthly based upon EPC Customer's energy usage and is

assessed on a $/kWh basis. This method does not require EPC Customer to pay additional carrying costs for financing' The

Board designated $102.4 million as EPC in connection with the February 2021 Winter Storm Uri. Based on the options

provided by ttre Scneaule pCA, approximately one-third of GRDA's customers chose options to repay within the first

twelve months, while the remaining two-thirds
elected the PCAx-120 option.

The graph titled "Average Customer Rates (Cents

per kwh)" reflects the removal of the

aforementioned 23 mills per kWh of estimated
power cost from the base rate in the dark blue bars.

This graph also shows the impact of the PCAx-12
portion of the costs incurred in relation to Winter
Storm Uri, as well as the impact of the dramatic
decrease in natural gas prices in2023 compared to
2022 driving down the PCA and related power
prices for the year.

The PCA revenues also reflect an accrual of any

over or under-collected fuel costs. ln 2023, as

natural gas prices continued to decline, the
Authority's under collected balance swung from an
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under collected balance of $34.2 million to an over collected amount of $ 44.6 million, a change of $78.8 million. As

mentioned above, the additional costs of Winter Storm Uri continued to be collected in the PCAx. Of the $102.3 million
in Uri costs, $52.4 has been collected with the remaining $49.9 to be collected through 2030. At the end of 2023

approximately $5.3 million net was under-recovered between the $44.6 million over collected in yearly PCA recovery

una tn" $49.9 million of remaining under recovered Uri costs at the end of 2023 compared $43.4 million of which is long

term.

OPERATING EXPENSES

As mentioned above, Operating Expenses decreased by $79.0 million or l5%oin2023 made up primarily of the $103'1

combined decrease in fuel and purchased power costs. This decrease was offset by increases of $13.0 million in higher

depreciation costs related to accelerated depreciation associated with the estimated useful life of GREC 2 ftom2030 to2026.

Oierating expenses increased in2022 $67.lmillion, or l4Yo. See the graph titled "Purchased Power" for the trend in
purchased power expenses over the last five years. Purchased Power decreased in 2023 driven by the significant fall in
natural gas prices and related power costs decreasing a combined $103.1. This change in natural gas prices reverses the

increasei sein in the previous years driven largely by the price of natural gas, which is a major driver of the SPP Integrated

Marketplace prices. Purchased Power decreased by $56.9 million, or 38Yo, in2023, after increasing $33.9, or 29o/o, in2022.

Fuel exieeded purchased Power in both 2023 and2022, decreasing in total by $46.2 million or 25%o in2023 after increasing

in2022 $9.1 million, or 5oh, in2022. Operating and Maintenance Expenses were relatively flat increasing by $4.8 million,

or 4Yo,in2023. This followed an increase of $15.5 million or l6Voin2022 due to $9.7 million of commission expenses

related to the aforementioned TEA agreement as well as $5.7 million in major maintenance projects throughout the

Authority. Additionally, the Authority experienced $6.4 higher adminishative and general costs due to $2.3 million of higher

pension costs, $0.9 million of higher insurance costs, and various costs associated with the ERP implementation.

Administrative and General Expenses increased by $7.6 million, or 46Yo, in 2022 driven by pension expense recognition

required by GASB 68, which is discussed further in Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources.

Historicaliy, Administrative and General Expenses included the settlement of claims, insurance deductibles, employee

insurance premiums, and post-retirement benefits. With the implementation of GASB 68, GRDA has experienced some

variability of expenses in this area. The Statement requires current year contributions to be recorded as a reduction in the

long-term pension liability, rather than a current year expense, and introduced other variables to recognition ofcurrent year

expense.

Depreciation expense increased $13.0 million or 2lYo driven primarily by accelerated depreciation for GREC 2 which was

originally estimated to operate through 2030 but has now been targeted to be replacedin2026 when GREC 4 becomes

operations. Depreciation expense in 2022 remained relatively consistent only increasing by $1.1 million, or 2o/o'

SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The Authority added $99.3 million to capital assets, offset by a small amount of retirements totaling $1.4 million. Capital

additions in2022 totaling $67.5 million were offset by $0.9 million in retirements. For several years, the generation outlays

have included a multi-year relicensing effort that will allow the Pensacola Dam to continue producing electricity for another

fifty years. Capital projects in2023 included preliminary spending for GREC 4, various projects with our hydro generation

fleet, substation and transmission line upgrades, additional Redbud costs, and construction costs to complete the WOI(A
project. Projects in2022 included an upgrade of a switching station at the municipal customer, Collinsville, the completion

bf construction on the Authority's new Administrative Center, various Transmission and Dishibution infrastructure

upgrades, and generation reliability investments. Other significant asset additions for 2022 contributed to the continued

reliability of GREC 2 and strengthening Redbud infrastructures.
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2023
Generation Capacity

(MW)

Wind

I Thermal-Coal

I Purrped-Storage l-{ydro

Cornbined-Cycie Gas

I Conventional Hydro

I Customer-Owned

As shown in Note 4 to Financial Statements, Utility
Plant, the majority of Net utility plant consists of a
diverse mixture of hydroelectric, coal, and natural gas

generation resources, supported by a transmission

system for the delivery of power and energy. The pie

chart labeled "2023 Generation Capacity (MW)"
reflects GRDA's generation accredited capacity by fuel

source. The Authority has contracts for firm wind
purchases from four Oklahoma wind farms. In

combination with existing hydroelectric generation,

these diverse resources allow the Authority to provide

reliable electricity for customers, while also striving to

excel in environmental stewardship.

Restricted Assets
The Authority's General Bond Resolution No. 5107

requires Debt Service Reserve Funds to be set aside

and that the Debt Service Reserve account be equal to

the "Maximum Aggregate Debt Service." Upon

issuance of the Series 2023 Bonds, the Debt Service

Reserve requirement was calculated to be $96'2
million.

The Authority normally keeps an excess in restricted accounts to compensate for any unforeseen market value

fluctuations of investments in the account. The Authority's balance in the Debt Service Reserve account as of December

31,2023, was $97.3 million, or $l.l million in excess of the required amount. As discussed in Note 2 to Financial

Statements, Deposits and Investments, the balance in the Debt Service Reserve account, including any excess, is

reflected as a restricted asset, because bond proceeds were used to initially fund the account and carry associated

restrictions on how the funds can be used.

The restricted accounts for other special purposes relate to wildlife mitigation, pursuant to hydro licensing requirements,

and riparian lease grant funds. Each of the restrictions is discussed in further detail in Note 2 to Financial Statements,

Deposits and Investments.

Reserve funds, established in 2021 through enabling legislation,are set aside for specific purposes, which are included in

the restricted assets. ln 2021, the Authority created both a Capital Reserve Fund and a Special Reserve and Contingency

Fund, amounting to $9.9 million and $50.4 million respectively. Throughout 2023, GRDA used $4'9 million to fund

capital projects. which brought the year-ending balance to $2.9 million. GRDA continues to maintain a Rate Stabilization

Fund, which contained a balance of $3 1.7 million, as of December 31, 2023.The use of each of these funds is at the

discretion of the Board of Directors.

The Authority, through its investment policy, seeks to provide the maximum security along with the best investment

return, while meeting the daily cash flow demands, and conforming to all bond policies and state statutes. While these

conservative investment requirements hedge against investment losses, the yields earned on the eligible investments

reflect the reduced risk. The first priority of the investment policy is the safety of principal, ratherthan to earn speculative

income.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources

The Authority maintains balances of Deferred outflows related to pension plans, other post-employment benefits, losses

on reacquired debt, and derivative hedges. The Deferred outflows related to pension plans totaled $16'0 million, which

represents a decrease of $8.6 million over the 2022balance of $24.6 million. This variability is related to the performance

of the pension plan's underlying financial assets, as well as adjustments to actuarial assumptions used in valuation

calculations.
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Deferred outflows related to other post-employment benefits was $l.7 million in2023 compared to $2'4 million in2022.

See Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans, Postretirement, and Other Employee Benefits for more information.

GRDA amortized $2.8 million in losses on reacquired debt in2023,to reduce the Deferred outflow balance from $21.7

million in2022, to $18.8 million in2023. The balance will be amortized over the life of the corresponding debt'

The Authority maintains balances of Deferred inflows related to pension plans, other post-employment benefits,

regulated operations, and derivative hedges. The Deferred inflows related to pension plans decreased by $l ' I million in
2023,following a decrease of $34.3 million in2022. Like the Deferred outflows discussed above, this variability is also

related to the perfonnance of the pension plan's underlying financial assets, as well as adjustments to actuarial

assumptions used in valuation calculations.

Deferred inflows related to other post-employment benefits were $3.7 million and $2.3 million in 2023 and 2022

respectively. See Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans, Postretirement, and Other Employee Benefits for more

information.

The Authority follows accounting for regulated operations in accordance with GASB 62, which requires approval from

the Board of Directors, as they represent the regulatory body for the Authority. Deferred inflows related to regulated

operations totaled $122.7 million in2023 versus $121.3 million in2022. This increase of $1.4 million is made up of $5.6

million in additional deferred revenues, and recognized revenues of $4.3 million. See Note 5 to Financial Statements,

Costs Recovered or to be Recovered from Future Revenues for the detail of authorizations for regulatory treatment'
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Long-Term Debt
In December 2023,inconjunction with the Board's approval to construct GREC 4, GRDA issued $205 million of bonds

payable with an associated premium of $25.6 million for total proceeds of $231.6 million. GRDA's bonds payable,

itr"tuAing premium, increased by $ 179.3 million from 2022 to 2023 reflecting the additional bonds issued in December

offset by $43.1 in principal payments and $9.2 million of premium amortization. The bonds payable current portion

increased by $6.1 -illion, and the noncurrent portion increased by 5173.2 million. The net increase was made up of $205

million in new issuance, $26.6 million in additional premium, $43.1 million in retirements and $9.2 million in premium

amortizations. The Authority reported a premium balance at the end of 2023 for the 2014A bonds, the 2016A bonds, the

2017 bonds, and the 2023 bonds totaling $84.4 million'

GRDA makes monthly sinking fund payments to the bond trustee, which are reflected as Current Investments Restricted for

Bond Service. The current balince, as oiDecemb er 31,2023, is $32.6 million. The bondholders are then paid annual principal

payments on June I and semi-annual interest payments on June I and December 1 of each year. Please see Note 6 to Financial
'Stut"1n.ntr, 

Bonds payable for more detailed information. The graph "Future Debt Service Depicting Principal and Interest

(thousandi)" providis an indication ofhow much principal and interest are due each year, until all currently outstanding

bonds matur e in2042. The graph distinguishes between the matured bonds and the currently outstanding issues.

public Financial Management (PFM) represents the Authority as financial advisor to ensure it meets current and long-

term operations and 
"upitut 

financing needs and to render assistance with respect to debt transactions. PFM is acting as

the Authority's Independent Municipal Advisor, as defined by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission in

connection with all general capital markets activity.

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL POSITION

The Authority's financial position continues to improve, year over year. The Authority's cash reserve levels' in

conjunction with a formalized Cash Reserve Policy that was amended by the Board of Directors in202l, has positioned

the Authority to continue with its capital improvement plan, while holding base rates steady, as well as be prepared for

events such as Winter Storm Uri, previousiy discussed. With the Approval of the construction of GREC 4 and the

subsequent retirement of GREC 2, in April 2024,the board approved a series of rate increases over the next 3 years to

raise revenues in order to support the additional debt required to construct the $480 million simple cycle gas combustion

unit.
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GRDA's Board of Directors approved the creation of a new Board-designated fund for system capital improvements in

2021, that will further strengthen the Authority's cash position. Debt service coverage has remained excellent, far

exceeding the one-time's coverage required by debt covenants. The Authority's Board of Directors is comprised of
persons with experienced, diverse backgrounds. Their oversight and perpetual insistence for excellence and efficiency

ensures that GRDA's history of success continues.

Wholesale customers provide financial security with long-term contracts. The Authority has been humbled by, and is

motivated by, the active support of its wholesale customers and is actively working with this customer group to continue

to face and conquer the onslaught of changes perpetually facing the utility industry. Wholesale electric sales were

relatively flaIin2023 with a 1%o decrease after a small increase in2022 of 4Yo. The Authority's long-term revenue

projections are more stable due to these long-standing contracts. Many of the all-requirements contracts with the wholesale

customers run two years longer than the majority of GRDA's outstanding debt.

Continued industrial expansion in the Mid America Industrial Park has led to increasing sales within the Industrial and

Commercial customer classes rising l0% in both 2023 and2022, offsetting the slight declines of the wholesale load,

and providing for forecasted growth in sales.

The 2021 "# 1 GRDA" was the foundation of company culture that carried the Authority through the challenges presented by

the events of the year and allowed for focus on "New Beginnings" in2023. This teamwork and the continued support of our

customers base allowed for the Board to unanimously approve the construction of GREC 4 in August 2023,the2024budget
in December 2023, andthe series of rate increases in April 2024 that will continue to build a stronger GRDA.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK
GRDA has a positive economic outlook, due to sound financial and operational fundamentals and solid, mutually beneficial,

long-term customer relationships. The Authority remains agile in its ability to facilitate expanding customer relationships.

Capital improvement plans for the Authority include continued investment in the Authority's infrastructure to continue to

serve our existing customers and potential new customers. The retail customers served by GRDA are diverse and service-

oriented, with forecasted growth throughout the upcoming years, while GRDA continues to be instrumental in attracting

new customers to the Authority's service tenitory.

GRDA's 2021 financial and cash positions were such that the Authority was able to finance the Winter Storm Uri event

without issuing new debt and allowing customers the option to pay over 12 months or the option to repay over 120 months.

Since 202 I , the Authority has been able to rebuild much of its cash reserves and with the 2023 and future 2024 bond issuance,

the Authority is in a good financial position to finance the construction of GREC 4. Additionally, the strategic leverage of
the Rate Stabilization Fund has the potential to help offset increases in debt service requirements in the base rate.

The Authority and its customers continue to work together to educate end users regarding the connection between

efficiency, demand, and affordability. This will aid in managing end users' expectations of their electricity providers, as

the impact of the Integrated Marketplace and technology, such as distributed generation, introduce new and varying

aspects to the utility industry. These efforts include research efforts to institute Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI)
in municipalities. In 2024, GRDA began a program to bring AMI to our municipal customers in an effort to continue to

support our customers management of their load requirements. The Authority created a new rate schedule for the

municipal customers that elect to participate in the AMI program that allows them to upgrade their equipment and

reimburse GRDA for the costs over a five-year period.

The Authority protects the waters of the Grand River and the environments associated with it and utilizes Oklahoma's natural

gas, water, and wind resources to generate electricity. The Authority meets customers' needs and environmental mandates

with diversified resources and generation. The diversity in GRDA's generation portfolio provides a hedge to risks, such as

fuel supply, Integrated Marketplace competition, and environmental legislation. The generation assets are supported by a

robust and reliable transmission grid. The Authority has a favorable economic outlook because its electric system profile has

low-debt costs, strong customer support, and coordinated resource planning.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This report is intended to provide our customers, bondholders, citizens of the state of Oklahoma, and other interested parties

with a general overview of GRDA's financial position, results of operations, and to demonstrate accountability for the

revenues GRDA receives.

Questions about this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be directed to the Authority at:

Grand River Dam Authority, PO Box 669, Chouteau,OK74337.
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GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2023' and2022

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents:

General operating accounts

Restricted accounts

Investments:

General operating accounts

Restricted accounts

Accounts receivable - net

Accrued interest receivable

Fuel stock

Materials and supplies - net

Under recovered power costs

Prepaid assets

Hedging derivative instruments

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Investments:

General operating accounts

Prcsirictcd accounis

Net utility plant:

Nondepreciable - at original cost

Depreciable - at original cost, less depreciation

Under recovered power costs

Nonutility plant - at original cost, less depreciation

Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to pension plans

Related to post employment benefits

Related to loss on advanced refunding

Related to derivative hedges

Total delerred outflows ol- resources

2023 2022

$35,277,s03

5,172,277

24,008,580

32,640,611

48,577,068

4,625,878

16,114,7 52

52,465,406

6,496,771

6,486,734

$74,606,681

8,265,422

3 1,039,483

30,206,686

54,346,327

2,172,296

10,547,531

50,214,125

41,093,472

5,807,257

2,986,350

23 1,865,580 31 1,285,630

304,496,431

JOU,UJO,4))

l5 I ,566,l8 I

1,087,492,181

43,413,333

40,112,548

25,607,520

125,227,491

i o8,09 i ,230

99,373,190

1,117,724,399

49,610,1s0

34,237,907

10,766,703

2,012,724,649 1 ,605,03 1 ,070

2,244,590,229 1,916,316,700

15,997,469

1,680,41 5

18,826,324

16,678,t74

24,558,350

2,369,786

21,654,847

4,026,920

22

53,182,382 s2,609,903



GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31. 2023. and 2022

2023 2022

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabitities

Accrued interest payable

Bonds payable - current portion

Over recovered power costs

Total current liabilities

Noncurent liabilities:

Bonds payable - net

Liabilities related to pension plans

Liabilities related to post employment benefits

Other noncurrent liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Related to pension plans

Related to post employment benefits

Related to costs recovered or to be recovered

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:

Capital reserve fund

Special reserve and contingency fund

Bond service

Special purposes: other

Unrestricted

TOTALNET POSITION

$57,400,918

3,926,610

49,225,000

44,606,832

$56,330,790

3,341,065

43,080,000

I 55, l 59,360 102,75 1,855

1,020,015,528

14,030,125

15,544,891

12,179,163

846,812,103

21,295,647

18,445,087

9,987,885

1,061,769,707 896,540,722

1,216,929,067 999,292,577

1,013,573

3,712,404

122,676,221

2,117,281

2,305,327

121,300,297

127,402,198 125,716,90s

484,318,563

2,916,947

32,649,5s8

28,774,583

2,r46,836
402,694,819

434,86s,46s

7,806,994

50,383,000

25,129,999

2,086,739

323,645,s24

$9s3,441,346 $843,917,121
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GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023' and 2022

2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES

Sales of power

Other operating revenues

Regulatory revenues

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Fuel

Purchased power - net

Operations

Depreciation

Maintenance

Administrative and general

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Investment income (loss) - net

Award revenue - operating

Income (loss) - non-operating

Income (loss) - non-utility operations

Interest expense

Costs recovered or to be recovered

Cost of issuance

Amortization of bond premium

Total nonoperating expenses

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS :

Award revenue- capital

NET INCREASE INNET POSITION

NET POSITION- Beginning of year

NET POSITION - End of year

$496,664,358
74,097,144

4,195,812

$589,878,953

75,348,353

2,977, t.t I

574,957,314 668,204,643

(139,829,863)

(92,498,600)

(84,990,303)

(75,872,836)

(30,8 16,696)

(30,265,296)

(186,042,989)

(149,404,112)

(84,078, I 73)

(62,844,949)

(26,966,147)

(23,8es, 732)

(454,273,594) (533,232,102)

120,683,720 134,972,541

26,119,473

330,388

(1 ,36 I,585)

(2,473,7s1)

(42,464,555)

(5,626,159)

(820,7s6)

(29,t07,670)

59,951

(5,207,691)

(1,852,356)

(43,853,908)

(23,657,987)

(106,750)

9,677,1969, 176,086

(t7,120,859) (94,049,215)

5,961,364 24,228,211

109,524,22s

843,917,121

65,151,537

778,765,584

$953,441,346 $843,917,12r

See notes to financial statements.
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GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, and 2022

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Received from customers

Received from award revenues- operating

Payments to employees for services

Payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Additions to utility plant

Payments for retirements of utility plant

Received from sales of retirements of utility plant

Received from award revenues- capital

Proceeds from bond issue

Bond premium

Bond issuance costs

Repayment of principal

Interest paid

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of securities

Proceeds from sales and maturities ofsecurities

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- Beginning of year

$616,817,070

123,713

(56,4t2,310)

(309,392,580)

s634,739,021

277,320

(5 1,590,864)

(390,870,615)

251,135,893 192,554,862

(103,9t6,023)

(1,213,141)

944,603

4,282,900

205,000,000

26,604,512

(820,7s6)

(43,080,000)

(39,050,487)

(77,034,982)

(547,319)

2s9,861

24,812,412

(41,675,000)

(41,0rr,6s2)

48,751,608 (135,196,680)

14,950,195

(461,242,614)

103,982,s9s

7,050,027

(263,791,172)

264,740,576

(342,309,824) 7,999,431

(42,422,323) 65,357,613

82,872,103 17,514,490

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- End of year
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GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, and 2022

2023 2022

NONCASH ITEMS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
ACTIVITIES:
Noncash purchases ofutility plant included in accounts payable

Noncash award revenues- capital

NONCASH ITEMS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments

Operating income
Noncash items included in net operating income:

Income from nonutility operations

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables:

Customers

Other

Fuel stock

Materials and supplies

Other

Deferred outflows related to pension plans

Deferred outflows related to post employment benefits

Defened outflows related to derivative hedges

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Over (under) recovered fuel costs

Other noncurrent liabilities
Delerred inflows related to pension plans

and post employment benefits
Deferred inflows related to defened revenues

Deferred inflows related to derivative hedges

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See notes to financial statements.

($473,0s2) $323,s38

$l 78

$8,382,892 ($ 17.892.443)

Amortization of premiums and discounts $322,930

RECONCILITATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

($ l,188,356)

$120,683,720

(7,788,724)

7s,872,836

7,550,453
(16,63 1,363)

(s,567,221)

(2,251,281)
2,1 13,81 5

8,560,881

689,371

(12,651,255)

1,241,047

85,400,349
(7,772,028)

309,369
I,375,924

$134,972,541

(31,591,329)

62,844,949

17,228,018

23,013,664

(3,555,439)

( 1,880,1 46)

( 123,010)

(19,t83,229)
740,869

(4,026,920)

12,353,479

140,261

I 8,456,981

(32,460,785)

20,626,098
(5,001,140)

$2s 1,l 35,893 $192,554,862
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GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, AND 2022

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business-The Grand River Dam Authority (the "Authority" or "CRDA"), a non-appropriated state

agency, was created by the State of Oklahoma in 1935 as a conservation and reclamation district. The Authority has

the power to control, store, preserve, and distribute the waters of the Grand River and its tributaries for any useful

purpose and to develop and generate water power, electric power, and electric energy within the boundaries of the

Authority and to buy, sell, resell, interchange, and distribute electric power and energy. The Grand River lies entirely
within Oklahoma, but its drainage basin also extends over the states of Arkansas, Kansas, and Missouri. As part of
the Authority's licensing agreements, the Authority also has lake area responsibilities. The costs of those activities
are funded primarily through electricity sales. The Authority's financial statements are included in the State of
Oklahoma Annual Comprehensive Financial Report as a discretely presented component unit.

Basis of Accounting-The Authority is licensed to operate under the Federal Power Act, which requires the use of
the uniform system ofaccounts, prescribed for public utilities and licensees. The Authority is a cost-of-service

organization and establishes its rates to provide revenues sufficient to pay all expenses necessary for the operation

and maintenance of the system, all payments, transfers, and deposits related to outstanding debt, and all other charges

or obligations imposed by law or contract.

Basis of Presentation-The Authority's basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows
ofresources, liabilities, and deferred inflows ofresources resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are

recognized when the exchange takes place.

The Authority's basic financial statements conform to the provisions of standards issued by the Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB establishes standards for external financial reporting for all state and

local governmental entities, which include Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Position, and Statements of Cash Flows. It requires the classification of net position into
three components-net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as

follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets-This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation and costs recovered or to be recovered from future revenues reduced by the outstanding balances ofany
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets. Ifthere are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion ofthe debt attributable to
the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the

debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted-This component of net position consists of funds subject to constraints placed on net position use

through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), contributors, or laws or

regulations of other govemments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use for the same purpose, it is the

Authority's practice to use unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed, unless directed by
the Board of Directors, as enabled by legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position-This component of net position consists of any remaining net position that does not

meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."
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Estimates-The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States bf America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ

from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash in banks, unrestricted money

market funds, and unrestricted certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less' Balances are

presented on a net basis to the extent such balances are subject to the right ofoffset. Unrestricted cash and cash

equivalents are shown as General Operating Accounts and restricted cash and cash equivalent are shown as

Restricted Accounts on the Statements of Net Position.

Investments-Investments principally comprise U.S. government securities, U.S. government agencies,

U.S. government-sponsored enterprises, state government obligations, money market funds, certificates of deposit

and Grtificates ofbeposit Account Registry Service. The Authority reports investments at fair value, which is the

price that would be reieived to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

bate. Unrestricted investments are shown as General Operating Accounts and restricted investments are shown as

Restricted Accounts on the Statements of Net Position.

Fuel Stock-Fuel stock is valued using the lower of the average cost method or fair market value' The delivered

commodity is expensed monthly based on fuel burned, and undistributed costs, which includes costs of coal handling

and railcar and railroad track maintenance, are expensed monthly independent of fuel bumed.

Materials and Supplies-Materials and supplies inventory is valued using the average cost and specific

identification methods and is subject to write-off when deemed obsolete. A reserve was establishedin2022 fot
obsolete inventory that is intended to adjust the net realizable value ofinventory that may not be usable. The balance

in this reserve as of December 3 1,2023 and December 31,2022, was $3,300,000.

Under/Over Recovered Fuel Costs- The Authority's rate structure, as approved by the Board of Directors, allows

the Authority to increase or decrease monthly charges from wholesale and retail customers to recover actual fuel

costs incurred by the Authority. This monthly charge, referred to as the Ordinary Power Cost Adjustment (PCAo)' is

calculated montirly based on an estimated 12-month average of future fuel costs. The cumulative difference between

the actual fuel costs and the revenue collected by the PCAo is reflected as either an asset ("under recovery") or

liability ("over recovery") in the Authority's accompanying Statements of Net Position, as these amounts will be

included in the PCA Factor and either collected from or refunded to customers of the Authority in subsequent

periods.

Effective for reporting period ending December 3l,2027,the Authority amended the schedule PCA to include a new

component, referred to as PCAx, which is designed to recover Extraordinary Power Cost (EPC) events. EPC events

are designated by the Board of Directors. The costs associated with an EPC event can be recovered from customers

via three options:

PCAx-120 - EPC Customer pays its Customer Costs via not more than 120 monthly payments. This method

does accrue additional EPC Carrying Costs for financing.

PCAx-12 - EPC Customer pays its Customer Costs via not more than 12 monthly payments. This method does

not accrue additional carrying costs for financing.

PCAx-Base - EPC Customer pays the original l2-month PCA calculation under the PCA in place during the

EPC event. This amount varies monthly based upon EPC Customer's energy usage and is assessed on a $lkWh
basis. This method does not require EPC Customer to pay additional carrying costs for financing.

Joint Ownership-On October 1,2008, the Authority purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities in the

Redbud combinJd-cycle gas plant near Luther, Oklahoma. The Authority's undivided interest in the assets and
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liabilities of the facility is 360/o, while Oklahoma Gas & Electric's (OG&E) interest is 5l%o, and Oklahoma Municipal

Power Authority's (OMPA) interest is l3o/o.

OG&E operates the Redbud facility under an operating agreement with the Authority and OMPA and allocates

ceftain costs and expenses attributable to Redbud to the Authority and to OMPA, in accordance with their undivided

ownership interests136Yo and l3olo, respectively). The Redbud facility has long-term service agreements with a large

industrial manufacturer for the maintenance of the gas and steam turbines. These amounts have been included in the

contractual commitments in Note 9 to Financial Statements, Commitments and Contingencies.

Utility Plant and Depreciation- The cost of utility plant includes direct costs, such as material, labor, and

payments to contractors, as well as indirect costs, such as engineering, supervision, and administrative and general

"*p"nr.r. 
Generally, assets which have a cost of$500 or more at the date ofacquisition and have an expected useful

life of more than one year, and are not consumable, are capitalized. The cost of maintenance and repairs to property

is expensed. Certain costs of the long-term service agreement payments for both the GREC 3 and Redbud plants are

capitalized. Gain or loss is recognized on retirements and dispositions'

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis at rates based upon the estimated useful lives of assets.

Depreciation expense, calculated as a percentage of depreciable plant, averaged approximately 7 .0% and 5.60/o fot

each ofthe years ended December 31,2023, and2022'

The utility depreciable property classes range from 3 to 87 years. The depreciable lives for the Redbud plant

generally align with the majority owner.

Nonutility Plant and Depreciation- The cost of nonutility plant includes direct costs, such as material, labor, and

payments to contractors, as well as indirect costs, such as engineering, supervision, and administrative and general

Lr,p.nr... Generally, assets which have a cost of $500 or more at the date of acquisition and have an expected useful

life of more than one year, and are not consumable, are capitalized. The cost of maintenance and repairs to property

is expensed to Income (loss) - non-utility operations. Gain or loss is recognized on retirements and dispositions.

Most of the nonutility assets fall into the 30-year depreciable class.

Nonutility assets - depreciable

Less accumulated depreciation

Net nonutility plant

2023 2022

$40,976,027 $34,582,052 ,

(s63,47s) (344.14s)

$40,112,548 ' $34,237,907

Other Noncurrent Assets-Other noncurrent assets are made up mostly of long-term deposits, long-term accounts

receivable, and long-term hedging derivatives. The Authority maintains deposits with the Southwest Power Pool and

StoneX Financial Inc. The receivable is attributed to a customer's portion of the closure and post-closure costs, as

well as receivables from a FEMA claim. The deposit with StoneX Financial Inc. is approximately $21.8 million of
the $25.6 million balance in Other noncurrent assets.

Other Noncurrent Liabilities-Other noncurrent liabilities include the accumulated provision for the closure and

post-closure costs for the solid waste landfill, the accrued liability for annual leave of more than one year, and long-

ierm deferred credits. For more information on the closure and post-closure costs, see Note 10 to Financial

Statements, Landfill Closure and Post-closure Costs.

Costs Recovered or to be Recovered-Certain items included in operating costs are recovered by the Authority

through rates set by the Board of Directors. The Authority, as a self-regulated utility, is subject to the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-

November 30, 1g89, FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. GASB Statement No. 62 provides that certain costs that

would otherwise be charged to revenue and expense can be defened as regulatory liabilities and assets, based on the
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expected recovery from customers in future rates. Recognition ofthese costs is deferred to the extent that such costs

are later included in rates charged by the Authority in future years.

Management continuously monitors the future recoverability of regulatory items, and when, in management's

judgmint, any future recovery becomes impaired, the amount of the defened inflow is written off, as appropriate. For

additional information about the costs recovered or to be recovered, see Note 5 to Financial Statements, Costs

Recovered or to be Recovered.

Bonds Payable-The Authority is operating under its Board's General Bond Resolution No. 5107 ("Resolution

No. 5107"), which provides for the issuance of revenue bonds and defines eligible investment securities.

Unamortized Debt Discount or Premium-Debt discount or premium are amortized using the bonds outstanding

method over the periods of the applicable issues.

Unamortized Gains and Losses on Advance Refunding of Long-Term Debt-Gains and losses realized on

advance refunding of long-term debt are defened and amortized over the shorter ofthe life ofthe new bonds or the

related refunding issues using the bonds outstanding method.

Deferred Outflows-In addition to assets, the Statements of Net Position reports a separate section for the deferred

outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies to

a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow ofresources (expense) until then. The deferred outflows

of resources relate to deferrals required by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor

Pensions (GASB 68) related to pension obligations, deferrals required by GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and

Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 75) related to other postemployment

benefits (OPEB), deferrals related to derivative hedges as required by GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and

Financial Reportingfor Derivative Instruments, and defened losses on reacquired debt. For additional information

about the pension plans and OPEB, see Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans, Postretirement, and Other

Employee Benefits. For additional information about the loss on reacquired debt, see Note 6 to Financial Statements,

Bonds Payable. Refer to Note I I to Financial Statements, Risk Management, for additional information related to

derivative hedges.

Deferred lnflows-ln addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred

inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an

acquisition ofnet assets that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources

(revenue) until that time. The defened inflows of resources relate to deferrals required by GASB 68, defenals

required by GASB 75, regulated operations, which includes deferred revenues from third-party contributions to

cupital projects, and contributions to a rate stabilization account. For additional information about the pension plans

und OPEB, see Note 7 to Financial Statements, Retirement Plans, Postretirement, and Other Employee Benefits. For

additional information about regulated operations, see Note 5 to Financial Statements, Costs Recovered or to be

Recovered.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses- Operating revenues include the sales of power, other

operating revenues, and regulatory revenues. Other operating revenues consist ofthe sale ofSPP Auction Revenue

Rights and Transmission Congestion Rights, transmission revenues, sales of water, lake permitting fees, NOx

allowances, and renewable energy certificates. Regulatory revenues are the recognition ofdeferred revenues.

Operating expenses include costs to operate and maintain the Authority's generation and transmission assets, and

include fuel, purchased power, depreciation, and administrative and general expenses. Nonoperating revenues

include investment income, net increase in the fair value of investments, amortization of bond premiums, and income

from nonutility operations, which includes revenues from Scenic Rivers and the WOKA Waterpark. Nonoperating

expenses include interest expense, costs recovered or to be recovered from future revenues, bond-related expenses,

and expenses from nonutility operations, which include Scenic Rivers and WOKA operating expenses.
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Purchased Power-Purchased powef includes the cost of energy and power purchased for resale to customers.

Included are the settlements for the hourly net exchange of electricity in the SPP Integrated Marketplace and bilateral

purchases, primarily from long-term wind and customer generation purchase agreements.

Energy Hedging- The Authority has a formalized Risk Management Policy and Energy Hedging Program.

Accoidingly, the Authority evaluates transactions under GASB Statement No. 53. For additional information about

the hedging program, see Note 1 I to Financial Statements, Risk Management.

Capital Contributions-Cash and capital assets are contributed to the Authority from customers, municipalities, or

external parties. The value of property contributed to the Authority is reported as award revenues on the

accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position'

Income Taxes-The Authority is a govemmental agency organized under the laws of the State of Oklahoma and is

not subject to federal or Oklahoma state income taxes.

Comparative Data-Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified to be consistent

with the current year's presentation.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards-During the year, the Authority adopted the following accounting

standards:

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements.

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporling by addressing issues related to public-

private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in

which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to

provide public services by conveying control ofthe right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure

or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period oftime in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.

Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this

Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor

determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to provide, to whom the

operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be charged for the services; and (3) the

transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the

arrangement. This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment

arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an amangement in which a government compensates

an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying

nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The requirements of this

Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022.This statement did not have an impact on the

Authority's financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This Statement provides

guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements

(SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (l) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a

SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset-an intangible asset-and a conesponding subscription liability;
(3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs

of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs

are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The requirements of this Statement

are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022.This statement did not have an impact on the Authority's

financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022.The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in

accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency ofauthoritative literature by addressing (l)
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2)
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accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The practice issues addressed by this Statement are as

follows: (1) Classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53, Accounting

and Financial Reportingfor Derivative Instruments, that do not meet the definition of either an investment derivative

instrument or a hedging derivative instrument; (2) Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 87, Leases, as

amended, related to the determination of the lease term, classification of a lease as a short-term lease, recognition and

measurement of a lease liability and a lease asset, and identification of lease incentives; (3) Clarification of
provisions in Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment

Arrangements, related to (a) the determination of the public-private and public-public partnership (PPP) term and (b)

recognition and measurement of installment payments and the transfer of the underlying PPP asset; (4) Clarification

of provisions in Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technologt Arrangements, related to the

subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITA) term, classification of a SBITA as a short-term

SBITA, and recognition and measurement of a subscription liability; (5) Extension of the period during which the

London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is considered an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative

evaluation ofthe effectiveness ofan interest rate swap that hedges the interest rate risk oftaxable debU (6)

Accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP); (7)

Disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions; (8) Pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by

the pledging govemmenU (9) Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements-and

Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Locql Governments, as amended, related to the focus of the

govemment-wide financial statements; (10) Terminology updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63,

Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position; (1 1)

Terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements. The requirements of this Statement are

effective as follows: (l) The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP

distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments,

clarification of certain provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to Statement 53 and

Statement 63 arceffective upon issuance; (2) The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for

fiscal years beginning after June 15,2022, and all reporting periods thereafter; (3) The requirements related to

financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53

are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. This statement did not

have an impact on the Authority's financial statements.

Recengy Issued Accounting Standards- The following accounting standards will be adopted as applicable in

future periods: GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB

Statement No. 62, GASB StatementNo. 101, CompensatedAbsences, and GASB StatementNo. 102, Certain Risk

Disclosures. When they become effective, application of these standards may restate portions of these financial

statements.

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Authority's Resolution No. 5107 provides for the issuance of revenue bonds and defines eligible investment

securities as investments allowed pursuant to the Authority's investment policy. The Authority's Board Policy 5-2

defines the following categories oi investments (l) bonds or other obligations, which are direct obligations of the

United States of Am erica,-(2) bonds or other specifically named obligations, which are indirectly guaranteed by the

United States of America, (3) direct and general obligations of any state which are rated in the two highest major

categories of Moody's, Standard & Pooris (S&P), or Fitch, (4) certificates of deposit issued by a savings and loarr.

association or a bank and trust company which are collateralized by the securities described in (1) and (2) or which

are fully insured by the Federal oeposii Insurance Corporation (FDIC), (5) repurchase agreements with banks or

govemment bond iealers which ari secured by securities described in (1) and (2), (6) investment agreements with

fompanies or banks whose senior debt obligations are rated no lower than the second highest category of Moody's,

S&p, or Fitch, (7) short-term obligations of any state or political subdivision which are rated in the highest short-term

category by Moody's or S&P, and (8) any cash swap or similar arrangement of the Bond Fund Trustee, the

investments of which are limited to securities described in (1) and (2).
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The Authority carries its investments at fair value. Fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be

received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority

and trustees monitor collateral pledged to secure deposits in financial institutions for compliance with rules and

regulations promulgated by the Oklahoma State Treasurer.

Interest-Rate Ris/r-lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Resolution No. 5107 requires that investments not mature later than such times as the funds

shall be necessary to provide monies when needed for payments to be made from the Debt Service Account, and in

the case of the Debt Service Reserve Account, unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental Resolution, not later than

ten (10) years from the date of investment. The Authority's Board Policy 5-2 provides that general fund investments

shall also not mature later than ten (10) years from the date of investment and requires specific diversification

percentages by security type to reduce overall portfolio risk. The Authority attempts to hold the investments to

maturity, which minimizes the exposure to rising interest rates and the investments are classified using a weighted

average maturity.

As of December 31, 2023, and2022,the Authority had the following investments (classified as either General

Operating investments or Restricted investments on the Statements of Net Position) and corresponding maturities:

2023
Investment Maturities /in Yea rs\

Investment Type
U.S. government securities

U.S. Treasury Bills
U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. govemment sponsored enterprises

FFCB
FHLB
FHLMC
FNMA
GNMA

State government obligations
Total

Investment Type
U.S. government securities

U.S. Treasury Bills
U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. government sponsored enterprises

FFCB
FHLB
FHLMC
F\MA
GNMA

State government obligations
Total

Fair Value Less than 1

$33,697,1 38

19,701,137

2,899,390
1,515,358

330,895

1-5 6-10

$33,697, I 38

268,670,862

16,142,615

54,838,802

68,921,282
25,834,781
36,271,846

5,481,609
20,692,175
25,037,412
10,003,240
33,547,475

$-
183,960,673

10,661,006

31,247,237
42,368,512
15,831,541
2,393,476

4

$-
65,009,052

$s04,848.291 $58,143,918 $286,e33,410 $r59.770,963

2022
Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Value Less than I

$30,437,164
25,220,682

204,485
532,292

1-5

$-
120,536,022

6-10

$30,437,164
153,268,182

926

15,656,047

52,933,994
58,124,83 I
18,684,854

10,308,427

9,438?403

25,955,s04
39,951,345
15,360,607

2,904,166

$-
7 ,511,478

6,217,638
26,878,490
17,969,001

2,791,955
7,404,261

.718 $2 1s.072.272 $68 .772-

The above investment types exclude certificates of deposits.

Credit Risk-Credit risk is the risk that the insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill his

obligation. Mortgage-backed securities (MBS) are not rated, because the agencies that issue such securities did not

apply to any of the nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (l',lRSRO), such as Moody's Investors
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Service and S&P for ratings on their MBS. However, the agencies and the Govemment Sponsored Enterprises (GSE)

cany "Aaa/AA+" ratings from Moody's and S&P for their debentures, and the MBS which carry their label (e.g.,

Federal National Mortgage Association-"FNR"; Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation-"FHR") are direct

obligations of the agencies. The Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae") and the Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac") are govemment-sponsored quasi-govemmental agencies. These agencies are

consideied to have the implicit backing of the U'S' Government; therefore, the "Aaa'lAA+lAA+" rating by Moody's'

Standard & Poor's, and Fitch is implied. MBS issued by the Govemment National Mortgage Association, with the

label GNR, carry the explicit full faith and credit of the U.S. Govemment. Securities issued by the Federal Farm

Credit Bank (FFCB) and the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) are rated "AaalAA+lAA+" by Moody's, S&P, and

Fitch credit rating agencies. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are rated "AaalAA+/AA+" by Moody's, S&P, and Fitch

credit rating agencies. The MBS are senior in the credit structure to the debentures for the FNMA and FHLMC. The

certificates ofdeposit are held by various banks and are subject to the FDIC guarantees up to $250,000. The

Authority addresses credit risk of investments through the Authority's Board Policy 5-2 which states that investments

must be 6acked by the U.S. govemment, collateralized, fully insured by the FDIC or be rated no lower than the

second highest category of Moody's o'Aa", S&P "AA", or Fitch "AA". The Authority addresses concentration of
credit riskof investments through the Authority's Board Policy 5-2 which outlines the diversification desired in order

to reduce overall portfolio risk from an over-concentration ofassets'

As of December 31, 2023,and2022,the Authority's investments had the following ratings:

Asof December3l,2023,and2022,IheAuthorityhadthefollowingportfolioof investmentswithcreditexposure
by investment type as a percentage of total investments:

Concentration of Credit Risk

2023 2022

Investment Ratings

U.S government securities

U.S. government sponsored enterprises

State government obligations

U.S. government securities

U.S. ireasury Bills

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. govemment sponsored enterprises

prcs

FHLB

FHLMC

FNMA

GNMA

State govemment obligations

Moody's/S&P/Fitch
"Aaa/AA+lAA+"
"AaaJAA+lAA+"

"AalIAAIAA" or higher

2023

$302,368,000

202,009,326
470,965

8.9o/o

45.7

2022

s183,705,347
1 55,608,146

926,225

6.7%

53.2

3.2

10.9

13.6

5.1

7.2

0.1

4.6

15.s

t7.t
:.)
2.4

0.3

Custodial Credit Rirft-Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the

Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investment for collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. All money to be held by the Authority under Resolution No. 5107 is required to be deposited in one

or more depositories in the name of the Authority. All money deposited under the provisions of Resolution No. 5107

with the Bond Fund Trustee and the Construction Fund Trustee is required to be held in trust and applied only in

accordance with the provisions of Resolution No. 5107; money held by the Authority and deposited in any depository

is required to be held and secured in the manner provided by Oklahoma law.
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Restricted noncurrent investment funds in the bond service reserye account, and certain funds in the construction
account are included in Investments in Noncurrent assets on the Statements of Net Position. Restricted current
investment funds in the bond service account and certain deposits in the construction account are included in
Investments in Current assets on the Statements of Net Position. Restricted investments (noncurrent and current) are

not available for general operations.

Unrestricted cash deposits, certificates of deposits, and money market funds are fully collateralized or covered by
FDIC.

Fair Value Measuremenls-According to GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application,the
Authority is required to disclose the valuation technique and level of inputs for all investments. The Authority's
investments fall into input Level I and Level 2.

Level I inputs are quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the govemment
can access at the measurement date. Observable markets include exchange markets, dealer markets, brokered markets

and principal-to-principal markets.

Level2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. These inputs are derived from or corroborated by observable market data through
correlation or by other means, e.g., "market-corroborated" inputs. Level 2 inputs include:

r Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
o Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets
. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability
o Market-corroborated inputs

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability; they should be used only when relevant Level I and

Level 2 inputs are unavailable. Governments may use their own data to develop unobservable inputs if there is no

information available without undue cost and effort. The Authority has no investments that fall into Level 3.

Money Market Funds and Certificates of Deposit are not subject to classification.

The valuation methods for each investment listed in the following fair value of investments table include interactive
data from Govemment/Agency Sector (GV/AGENCY) and Collateralized Mortgage Obligation Sector) pricing
sources.

2023

Fair Value

U.S. government securities

U.S. govemment sponsored enterprises

State government obl igations

Derivative instruments

Level I
$:oz,:os,ooo

112,315,922

Level 2

89,693,404

470,965

06,6i8,174)

Level 3 Total

$302,368,000

202,009,326

+:i0,g6s

(16,678,174)

$-
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tr'air Value

2022

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
I

U.S. government securities

U.S. govemment sponsored enterprises

$183,705,347

104,074,911 51,533,235

926,225

$ 183,705,347

926,225

(4,026,920) 
1

$-

(4,026,920)

Carrying Values-Cash and cash equivalents and cuffent and noncurent investments on December 31,2023, and

2022,follows:

2023

General
Operations

Capital
Reserve &

Contingency
(Restricted)

Rate

(Restricted)

Bond
Service

Bond
Service
Reserve

(Restricted)

Special
Purposes

(Restricted)
Stabilization Construction

(Restricted) (Restricted) Total

143,064 , 40,343,587

Current:

1,1
I

$-;
i,1li,iit i

32,641,194

$' t $106,193 i$-Cash deposits-net

U.S. govemment
securities, agencies,
sponsored enterprises &
state govemment

Certificates of Deposit
Account Registry Service

Certifi cates of deposits-
maturity <12 months

Total current

i Noncurrent:

U.S. government
securities, agencies,
sponsored enterprises &
state government

$106,193 $- $-i
Money market funds- I 35,171,310

i cash and investments
2,916,946

I

; tr,4i8;j4i, - :, -, 30,528,e27: -i 2,111,684 44,0e8,es6'

!

11,099,584 l

t

I1,099,584

-i
1,450,651 i

97,098,971

1,450,651 ,

59,286,083 2,916,946 2,254,748

304,496,431 32,649,599 3 I,703,098
I

9r,900,206 , 460,',149,334

198,37s,164 s,408,388 203,783,552Money market funds

Total noncurrent
;'._

198,375,164 97,308,594 664,532,886

Total cash and investments $363,782,514 $35,566,545 I $31,703,098 $32,641,194' $198,375,164 $97,308,594 $2,254,748 : $761,631,857

304,496,431 31,703,09832,649,599
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2022

General
Operations

Capital
Reserve &

Contingency
(Restricted)

Rate
Stabilization
(Restricted)

Bond
Service

(Restricted)

Bond
Service
Reserve

(Restricted)

Special
Purposes

(Restricted) Total

Current:

Cash deposits-net
Money market funds-cash
and investments

U.S. govemment securities,
agencies, sponsored

enterprises & state
govemment obligations

Certificates of DePosit
Account Registry Service

Certifi cates of dePosits-
maturity <12 months

Total current

$918,202

73.688,4'79 7.806,994

18,913,780

10,689,782

$-$- $91 8,202

139,393 81,953,902

2,054,658 49,120,465

10,689,782

3 19,036

28,152,02'7

105,646,164 7,806,994 471,063

921

2,194,051 144,t18,272

291,119,253

Noncurrent:

U.S. govemment securities,
agencies, sponsored
enterprises & state
govemment obligations

Money market funds

Total noncurrent

31,703,098 83,805,664125,22',7,491 50,383,000

491 5 3 132

Total cash and investments $230'873,655 $58,189,994 $31,703,098 528,471,063 $86'005'132 $2,194,05 I s43'7 ,436,993

Additional information relating to cash and investment restrictions follows:

Rate Stabilization-Customer contracts contain requirements for the establishment and funding of a Rate

Stabilization Account. Board Resolution No. 5107 and No. 5358 contain further guidelines for the establishment,

maintenance, and allocation of the fund. For the year ended December 31, 2016,the Authority established and

deposited $21.0 million into the Rate Stabilization Account (RSA I). \n2020, $1.3 million was used to credit

wholesale full requirements customers, at a rate of $0.00055 per kWh. In October 2020,Board Resolution No' 5381

was approved to give the CEO the discretion to defer certain revenues and authorized the creation of Rate

Stabilization Account II (RSA II). For the year ended December 31, 2020,519.7 million in deferred revenues from

RSA I was recognized, while $3i.7 million of operating revenues was deferred and deposited into RSA II'

Bond Servicc--on December 31, the bond service fund in the accompanying Statements of Net Position reflects the

amount sufficient to pay seven months of principal and one month of interest due the following June 1'

Capital Reserve Fund-:lhese reserve funds are restricted through enabling legislation and were established in

December 2021for system capital improvements. This account is funded annually, up to a maximum of $100

million, by the unspent portion of the annual base rate recovery for capital improvements' Contributions to this

account in excess of $ 100 million shall be at the discretion and direction of the Board. These funds may be used for

any Board-approved capital projects.

Bond Service Reserve---The restricted amount in the accompanying Statements of Net Position reflects, at a

minimum, the maximum aggregate debt service requirement foione year for all bonds outstanding per General Bond

Resolution No. 5107.
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Restricted for Special purposes: FERC-Dxe to agreements with FERC, the Authority has restricted money for

two purpos'es. the first resfriction is for the Fish and witotite Mitigation Fund, established in June 2003 as required

Uy fenC. The Authority funded an initial deposit of $260,000 in 2003 and was required to make 5100,000 annual

contributions (adjusted for inflation) each yearihe Pensacola Dam license is in effect. In December 2015,the Authority

funded the balance of $1.45 million, which represented the estimated annual contributions through the year 2023'

Generally, the purpose of this fund is to support projects to protect and enhance fish and wildlife resources at the

direction of various groups extemal to the Authority. Expenditures of approximately $39,575 and $37 ,123 were made

from the fund in 2023 aid 2022, respectively. ttre secona restriction is for the Nature conservancy Fund, established

in May 200g as required by FERC. The Authority funded an initial deposit of $27,000 in 2008' The Authority is

required to replenish the fund to $27,000 on the fiist working day in January of each year. Generally, the purpose of

this fund is to maintain bat cave protection on Grand Lake. No expenditures were made from the fund in 2023 ot 2022'

Restrictedfor Speciat purposes: Other-TheAuthority also has restricted money for riparian easements under the

Oklahoma Conservation Commission and Grand River Dam Authority Cooperative Agreement, the Authority either

acquired or secured and paid for deeds of conservation easements. Enrollees that wish to terminate and/or are

removed due to breech of ugr".-"nt from the Riparian Protection Easement Program are required to pay back a pro-

rated amount of the remainilng years of the lump-ium payment received to the Authority as outlined in the agreement,

the balance of which was $to?,qt2 and $107,9i2 ur of De.ember 31,2023 and2022, respectively' with the

obligation to use the funds to secure additional easements within the Illinois River Watershed.

Construction-A2023 construction fund was established in December 2023 withthe proceeds of the Revenue

Bonds, Series 2023. The proceeds from Ihe2023 Bonds are to be used to fund a portion ofthe costs ofconstruction

of a nominal 42g Mw naiural gas-fired plant (GREC 4) on the site of the Authority's existing Grand River Energy

Center in Chouteau, Oklahoma'

The Special Reserve and Contingency Fund---These reserve funds are restricted through enabling legislation and

were established in December ZOlt for future use. These funds will be used at the discretion of the Board for

extraordinary maintenance, operations, environmental expenses, or expenses related to_unforeseen risks, including,

but not limit-ed to, unscheduled unit outages, unexpected purchase power expenses, and other extraordinary expenses

not covered by insurance proceeds. In December )021,th" Board approved the transfer of$383,000 from the

Supplemental Reserve and Contingency Fund II to this fund and to contribute an additional $50 million to this fund'

Reslized Gains antl Realized Losses-For purposes of computing gross realized gains and gross realized losses, cost

is determined by specific identification. The calculation of realized gains is independent of the calculation of the net

increase in the iaiivalue of investments. Realized gains and losses on any investments that had been held for more

than the current year may have been recognized ur-rn inrr.ure or decrease in the fair value of investments reported in

prior years.

-38-



Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on sales of investment securities for the years ended December 3 1,

2023, and 2022, were as follows:

20222023

Gross realized gains

ct*r t"ulir"liotti"

.l

$384,305 I

-l
(422,350) 

1

$261,239

(15,923,031)

Gross realized gains and losses are included in Investment income-net in the accompanying Statements of Revenues,

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

3. RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable is comprised on December 37,2023, and2022 of the following amounts:

20222023
: -'---

Customers

r Less allowance

$43,636,626 $50,882,505

for doubtful accounts (140,000) (r40,000)

3,603,822Other 5,080,442 '

Total Current Accounts Receivable
i Other Noncurrent Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable $49,374,380 $55,1 39,370

on Decembe r 31,2023, and2022,the Authority's other current accounts receivable, from the table above' includes

accrued revenues from grants, mutual aid events, and other reimbursables. other noncurrent accounts receivable

includes a customer's portion of closure and post closure costs, as well as receivables from a FEMA claim'

48,577,068

797,312

54,346,327

793,043
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4. UTILITY PLANT

A summary of changes in utility plant for the years ended December 3 I , 2023, and 2022, follows

2023

Balance
DeSemDeC 31, 2q4

Additions/
Transfers

Retirements Balance
December 31, 2023

$- $42,216,996

SE

t7
11,049,152

,26,1U I
17,2?2 .

l7 40
25

99,373,190 51,466,146

:_i _ e7-2q\225_7 _

r-r,-012,!!2

127

726,845 | l5l,566,l8l

t

J

Bclltqilgll! !te*-itt pryet:e-t.

Total capital assets- nondepreciable

- T- o:r-7js,i$ ]

4l&?i?2_8] i

3-8_8,916,1{1 
1

t7 105 945

(4,530,068) (3,t39,7s9)

6+?,0$2??t ll

@)73.!-\6_.
t_q9,q!qJql
2,q6;!Lg4,.
sot,?!Qo1t_:
170,688,802

Redbud qqmn!n9{qy9!_e C4q plant

Transmission and distribution
Other properties and production plant

2.346.556.739 47-805-133 n0.835.024) 2.383.526.848

: Lessggggqg!4te4 Cep{gctqlioq,
2 coal-fired (5tl.5_qaf59 i (1 zs/lt :

(r_s2,?61,?42-)
(88,415.q56)

Q,61,!l!,s12)-
(6sQr3,5!!),

Qtr1Jp,qp)
(94,8s1,737)

(t,228,832,340) (75,865,839) 8,663,5r2 (1,296,034,667)

I.l I 7. (28.060.706) (2.l7t.sl z',) 1.087.492.181

{l ,17 097 {r1 4n5 44n , (*1 44L 661\ , ir ,?o osR ?6t; Net utility plant
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2022

Balance
December 31,2021

Additions/
Transfers

Retirements Balance
December 31,2022

Capital assets- nondepreciable:
Land
Construction work in progress

Total capital assets- nondepreciable

Capital assets- depreciable:
CREC 2 coal-fired plant

GREC 3 combined-cycle gas plant

Redbud combined-cycle gas plant

Hydraulic production plants
Transmission and distribution system

Other properties and production plant

Less accumulated depreciation:
GREC 2 coal-fired plant

GREC 3 combined-cycle plant
Redbud combined-cycle gas plant

Hydraulic production plants
Transmission and distribution system

Other properties and production plant

$39,s93,273
49.436.228

s39,593,273
59.'779.917

89,029,501 10,343,689 99,373,190

634,51'7,657
455,841,694
38'1,504,244
188,720,670
485,806,194
r40,676,426

4,291,615
2,420,589
2,935,692
1,791,390
6,836,865

38,918,381

(73,284)

(1,523,374)
(37,790)

(834,0s2)
(1,236,178)

638,735,988
458,262,L83
388,91 6,562

190,474,270

491,809,007
r78,358,629

). ).91.066.89,5 57.1 (? 104 61R\ ) 746 \56.739

(s30, r23,8 l 8)

(62,2s4,243)
(L31,263,797)

(48,154,043)
(200,676,1s5)

(96,341,098)

(r r,55 l,676)
(12,894,031)
(16,919,96s)

(3,035,536)
(l 1,244,889)
(7,198,8s2)

I 14,835

882,542
89,780

786,902
951,704

(541,560,659)
(75,148,274)

(247,301,220)
(st,099,799)

(2t1,134,142)
( r 02,5 88,246)

(1,168,813,154) (62,844,949) 2,825,763 (1,228,832,340)

Total capital assets- depreciable 1.124.253.731 (5,6s0, 417\ (878.915) t.tt'l.724.399

Net utility plant $4.693.272 ($878.915) st-21'1.097 -589

The change in construction work in progress during 2023 and2022 is presented on a net basis to avoid a duplication

of additions and retirements in the preceding tables. The Authority had depreciation and amortizalion expense of
$7 5,872,836 and 562,844,949 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

On October 26,2027, a failure of a flange gasket caused a fire that damaged mechanical, electrical, civil/structural,

and various control systems of GREC 3, which resulted in the unit being taken offline for repair. The total cost of
damage was approximately $7.6 million. The Authority was insured, limiting the cash outlay to approximately $1.5

million insurance deductible. The unit returned to service on March 25,2022 and final repairs were completed in

November 2023.

In 2017, the Authority entered a Riparian Conservation Easement program with the Oklahoma Conservation

Commission (OCC). The Authority secures 30-year minimum easement agreements with landowners. A lump sum is

paid upfront for each easement. The costs are included in Other properties and production plant and are amortized on

a straight-line basis. The residual values are the difference between the total amortization and the amortization to

date. For each easement, a corresponding liability is recorded, and relieved for the same life. Riparian Conservation

Easements were not included in the scope of GASB Statement No. 87 as the agreements do not convey control of the

right to use the underlying asset to the Authority.

Riparian Conservation Easements

2022
2023

Initial Cost
1,730,802
1,730,802

Depreciation
(1ss,027)
(230,78e)

Carrying Cost
1,575,775
1,500,013
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5. COSTS RECOVERED OR TO BE RECOVERED

In2017, the Authority determined that it should defer the capital asset portion of the revenue proceeds from

insurance recoveries resulting from a July 2016 GREC fire restoration per GASB Statement No. 62. Defenal of
revenue in accordance with this Statement requires Board Resolution. Board Resolution No. 5307 pertaining to this

matter was passed and adopted by the Board of Directors on March 8,2017 '

Board Resolution 5325 was then passed and adopted by the Board of Directors on December 13,2017. This Board

Resolution further grants the Chief Financial Officer the discretion to record certain revenues as regulatory items

regarding revenues related to certain third-party reimbursement for capital assets procured or constructed and

recognize those revenues proportionately as said assets are depreciated.

The defened inflow of resources consists of recognized revenues associated with certain third-party reimbursement

on capital assets, as approved by one of the two resolutions described above. This amount is a portion of defened

inflows related to regulated operations on the Statements of Net Position. A roll forward of costs recovered or to be

recovered from future revenues follows:

Balance
t2/31t2022 Increase Decrease

Balance
12t3u2023

$5,626,rse $4,25923s- tl?.?13:l3iTlrlrd lqrty R9imb9199m9p! (Capital Assets)

Rate Stabil ization Fund
Total

$89,597?!99 .

3 l,703,098
$121,300,297 95,626,159 $4,250,235 $122,676,221

Balance
t2t3u202l

Balance
t2!3_U2U?2

$ge,q2z,1ee$68,971,101 $23

Increase Decre-asg 
,

7 $3,Q31,Q89 ,
7

31 703 3l 703

Total $100,674,199 $23,657,987 $3,031,889 $121,300,297

ln2020,the Authority passed Board Resolution 5388, which granted the Chief Financial Officer the discretion to

adopt regulatory accounting for the deferral of certain expenses, in accordance with GASB 62. Additionally in2020,
the Authority expanded the policy for regulatory items. This created a threshold for the treatment and recognition of
revenues, with a minimum of $1.0 million for individual projects, or $100,000 in annual amortization amounts.
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6. BONDSPAYABLE

A summary of changes in bonds payable for the years ended December 31,2023,and2022, follows

2023

December 31,
2022

Bonds
Issued

Retirements December 31,
2023

Revenue Bonds, 2010 Series B:
3.71o/oto 7.155% Series 2010B (fully
taxable)-maturing 2015 through 2040

Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A & B:
3o/oto 5o/o Series 2014A-maturing in 2018

through 2039

1.804o/oto 3.961%o Series 20148 (fully
taxable)-maturing 201 8 through 2039

Total Series 2014 A &B

Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series A & B:
3%oto 5o/o Series 2016A-maturing in2019
through 2039

1.828o/oto 3.503%o Series 20168 (fully
taxableFmaturing 2020 through 2033

Total Series 2016 A &B

Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series:
3o/o to 5Vo Series 201 7-maturing in 2021
through 2040

Revenue Bonds, 2023 Series:
2.75o/oto 3.75% Series 2023-maturing in
2030 through2042

Total bonds payable

Less current portion

Long-term portion

Add (deduct): Unamortized debt premium

$65, l 6s,000 $- ($l,91s,ooo) $63,250,000

188,330,000 (8,150,000) 180,180,000

71,630,000 (2,e60,000) 68,670,000

259,960,000 (l l,l 10,000) 248,850,000

398,095,000 (28,385,000) 369,710,000

18,270,000 (l,670,000) 16,600,000

416,365,000 (30,055,000) 386,310,000

8l,455,000 8l,455,000

205,000,000 205,000,000

$822,945,000 $205,000,000 ($43,080,000) $984,865,000

($43,080,000) ($49,225,000)

779,865,000 935,640,000

66,947,103 26,604,512 (9,176,087) 84,375,528

$846,8 12, I 03 $1,020,015,528Long-term bonds payable
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2022

December 31,
2021

$66,955,000

Retirements December 31,
2022

Bonds
Issued

Revenue Bonds, 2010 Series B:
3.7 l%o to 7.155% Series 201 0B (fully
taxableFmaturing 2015 through 2040

$- ($1,790,000) $65,165,000

Revenue Bonds,20l4 Series A & B:
3%o to 5%o Series 20 l4A-maturing in 20 I 8

through 2039

1.804% to 3961%o Series 20 l4B (fully
taxableFmaturing 20 I 8 through 2039

Total Series 2014 A &B

196,260,000 (7,930,000) 188,330,000

74,475,000 (2,845,000) 71,630,000

270,735,000 (10,775,000) 259,960,000

Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series A & B:
3%o to 5Vo Series 201 6A-maturing in 2019

through 2039

1.828o/oto 3.503Yo Series 20168 (fully
taxablefmaturing 2020 through 2033

420,975,000 (22,880,000) 398,09s,000

19,900,000 ( 1,630,000) 18,270,000

Total Series 2016 A &B 440,875,000 (24,510,000) 416,365,000

Revenue Bonds, 201 7 Series:
3%oto 5%o Series 2017-maturing in2021
through 2040

86,055,000 (4,600,000) 8 I,455,000

Total bonds payable $864,620,000 $- ($41,675,000) $822,e4s,000

Less current portion ($41 ,675,000) ($43,o8o,ooo)

Long-term portion 822,945,000 779,865,000

Add (deduct): Unamortized debt premium 76,624,299 (9,677,196) 66,947,103

Long-term bonds payable $899,s69,299 $846,8 I 2,1 03

Oklahoma state statutes have authorizedtheAuthority to issue revenue bonds from time to time with the aggregate

outstanding indebtedness not to exceed $2,000,000,000 effective April2023. Previously, the aggregate outstanding

indebtedness not to exceed was $ 1,410,000,000.
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The scheduled maturities of bonds payable on December 31,2023,are as follows and reflect the scheduled payments

to be remitted by the trustee to the bondholders:

Due to Bond Holders

Year Ended December 31 Annual Principal Calendar Year Bond
Payments

2024 $49,22s,000
$95,761,128

2025 49,425,000
94,1 84,090

2026 52,650,000
94,923,398

2027 49,535,000
89,303,661

2028 52,025,000

$984,865,000 $441,509,37 5

89,319,561

455,294,374

340,709,240

166,878,983

$1,426,374,375

2029-2033

2034-2038

2039-2042

311,515,000

266,0s0,000

154,440,000

Semiannual
Interest

$23,s59,660

22,976,468

22,976,468

21,782,622

21,782,622

20,490,776

20,490,776

1g,277,885

19,277,885

18,016,676

143,779,314

74,6s9,240

12,438,983

To secure the bonds, the Authority has pledged all revenues of the Authority. General Bond Resolution No' 5107 and

supplemental bond resolutions splcify multiple covenants made by the Authority to the Bond Fund Trustee and

boniholders. Among the more significant requirements, the Authority has covenanted to charge adequate rates,

operate and maintaii the facilitiei, and make any necessary repairs, renewals, replacements, and improvements'

System properties are not to be encumbered, soid, or disposedof, and additional parity bonds are not to be issued

unl.r. 
"Lrtuin 

conditions are met. As of December 31, 2023,the Authority complied with bond covenants'

In general, federal tax laws require the Authority to rebate to the US Treasury any profit from investments that yield

u t i"igt 
", 

rate than the tax-exempt revenue bond proceeds. The Authority has no liability for arbitrage rebate on

December 3 1, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

All of the Authority's outstanding bonds fall under General Bond Resolution No. 5107, which contains a provision

that if one or more Events of Default shall happen, then either the Bond Trustee or the Holders may declare the

principal of all Bonds then Outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable immediately'

7. RETIREMENT PLANS, POSTRETIREMENT, AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Authority participated in five retirement plans during 2023 and2022.The plans currently available to the

Authority p"isonn"t include three defined benefit plans and two defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plans

include the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) plan, the Oklahoma Law Enforcement

Retirement System (9LERS) plan, and the Authority's postemployment Healthcare Plan. The defined contribution

plans includethe Oklahoma State Employees Deferred Compensation Plan (the "state Plan") and the OPERS

Fathfinder plan. A summary of significant data for each of the retirement plans and discussion of postemployment

and other employee benefits follows:

The Authority is a participant in two multiple employer defined benefit pension plans, the Oklahoma Public

Employees Retirement pian (the ..opERS plan") and the oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement Plan (the "oLERS

plan";. The table below shows both pensions as reported in the basic financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31,2023

Deferred outf-lows of resources

Defened inflows of resources

, Penqion liability (asset)
, Peniion expense iecogniria

For the year ended December 31,2022

:

' Deferred outflows oi.esout..s
Defened lnflows of resources

Pension liability (asset)

, Pension expense recognized

OPERS
$13,876,026 ,

4s0,197

10,396,718 ,

5,499,073 .

OPERS 
,

$22,988,455 ,

l,$02,246 ,

18,277,6s6 ,

3,372,008 
,

OLERF
$2,121,443

563,376
3?633,+:07

7r7,533

OLERS
$ 1,569,895

309,035
3,017,991

591,214

Total
$15,997,469

1 ,0 1 3,573
14,030,125
6,256,546

Total
$24,558,350

?,111,281
21,295,647

3,963,222

The Authority's proportionate share of plan assets for OPERS as of December 3 I , 2023 , is 5243 ,507 ,844' while

proportionate share of plan liabilities is $253,904,5 62.The Authority's proportionate share of plan assets for OPERS

as of December 31, 2022,were5227,068,183, while proportionate share of plan liabilities is $246,178,651.

The Authority's proportionate share of plan assets for OLERS as of December 31, 2023,is $12,103,980, while

proportionate strare bf ptun liabilities is $15,737,387. The Authority's proportionate share of plan assets for OLERS

u. of O...*ber 31, 20)2,were$16,484,597, while proportionate share of plan liabilities is $19,502,588.

Oklahoma Public Employees Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

General Information about the Pension Plan

plan Description. The Authority contributes to the OPERS Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee

defined benefit retirement planLdministered by the OPERS, a component unit of the State of Oklahoma (the'oState").

The OpERS Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to its members and beneficiaries, primarily state,

county, and local ag"n"y employees. The benefits provided are established by and may be amended by the legislature

of the State. Title 74 ofitre Oklahoma Statutes, Seitions 901 through 943, assigns the authority for management and

operation of the OPERS Plan to the OPERS Board of Trustees.

ln20l4,the Oklahoma Legislature enacted legislation effective November 1,2015, requiring a defined contribution

system 6e established by tfie opERS for most state employees first employed by a participating State employer on or

after November l, 20 15, and ceasing the acceptance of any new participants to the defined benefit retirement plan.

OpERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary

information for OPERS. That annual report may be obtained online at www.opers'ok.gov, by writing to OPERS, PO

Box 53007, Oklahoma City, OK '73152-3007, or by calling l-800-733-9008'

Vesting. OpERS requires eight years of credited service (including six full years of full-time equivalent employment)

to be eligible to vest.

Benefits provided. Employees who became a member of OPERS before November l,20ll, can begin receiving full,

unrebuced retirement U"n"nt. at the age of 62 with six full years of full-time equivalent employment; or when the

sum of the member's age and y.a6 of se*ice equals 80 when membership began before July I , 1992:, or when the

sum of the member's age and years of service equals 90 when membership began on or after July 1,1992.

Employees who became a member of OPERS on or after November l,20ll, can begin receiving full, unreduced

retirement benefits at the age of 65 with six full years of full-time equivalent employment; or when the member is at

least 60 years of age and the sum of the member's age and years of service equals 90.
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Employees may retire at age 60 (55 when membership began before November l, 201 l) and receive reduced benefits

with ai least 10 years of participating service. Members who choose early retirement will receive a permanent

actuarial reduction in benefit based on the age at retirement.

The benefit on or after normal retirement, payable monthly for life, is 2oh of final average compensation, multiplied

by years of credited service. For members who have elected the Step-Up Option, a2.5Yo multiplier is applied to the

"stepped-up" full years.

Contributions. OpERS members and the Authority are required to contribute to the OPERS Plan at a rate set by

statute. Contribution rates are established and may be amended by the State. Each member participates based on

gross salary eamed (excluding overtime). As state employees, the Authority employees contribute 3.5%o on salary.

itt" Ruttrority contribute d,16.50/0, on all salary for the Plan's fiscal years-ended June 30,2023, and2022.

OpERS members have the option to elect to increase the benefit computation factor for all future service from2.0o/o

to 2.5yo.The election is inevocable, binding for all future employment under OPERS, and applies only to full years

of service. Those who make the election pay the standard contribution rate plus an additional contribution rate of
Zgl%which is actuarially determined. The election is available for all state, county, and local government

employees, except for elected officials and hazardous duty members.

During the reporting period for 2023 and2022,the OPERS recognized $5,684,180 and $5,725,382, respectively, in

contributions from the Authority.

Contribution rates as of December 31,2023 and2022, are as follows:

Employee Category EmPloYee

. Gengral
, Elected Officials 3.50%

O7ERS Hazardous Duty Employees. OnJuly 1,2016, SB 1388 became effective, which required the Authority's

public safety officers to participate in OPERS as Hazardous Duty Employees. This group of employees contributes
^g% 

of ullo*able compensationas defined in 74 O.S. $ 902(9) for a maximum of 20 years of hazardous duty

participating service, while the Authority contribute s 16.5Yo, on allowable compensation. After the employee has

contributed at the higher rate for 20 yeais, the employee will contribute at the nonhazardous duty rate. Employees

vest when they have eight years of credited service (including six full years of full-time-equivalent employment)'

Because all Authority J1npioy... will have become members of the plan after November l, 2011' the employee can

begin receiving full, unreduced retirement benefits when he or she is at least age 65 with six full years of full-time-

eqiivalent emfloyment or is at least 60 years of age and the sum of age and years of service equals 90.

pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions

toldeductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by

the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due

and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, investments are reported at fair value.

Employer

!6.s0_%
16.500

-47 -



On December 31,2023, the Authority reported a liability of S10,396,718 for its cumulative proportionate share of the

net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30,2023, and the total pension

liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2023.

The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was based on the Authority's share of contributions to

the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. On June 30,2023, the Authority's
proportion was2.2724%o which is a 0.05% decrease from the prior year. For the year ended December 31,2023,the
Authority recognized pension expense of $5,499,013.

OnDecember3l,2022,theAuthorityreportedaliability ofSls,2TT,656foritscumulativeproportionateshareofthe
net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30,2022, and the total pension

liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2022.

The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was based on the Authority's share of contributions to

the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. On June 30,2022, the Authority's
proportion was 2.2735oh which is a 1.57%o increase from the prior year. For the year ended December 31,2022,the
Authority recognized pension expense of $3,372,008.

As of December 31, 2023,the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

OPERS Plan 2023

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Change in proportion
Total

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Change in proportion
Total

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

$285,307
2,196,341
8,642,460

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

$ 157,569

2,751,918
292.628

s13,876,026 $450,197

As of December 3 1 , 2022, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

OPERS Plan2022
Deferred Outflows

of Resources
Deferred Inflows of

Resources

$876, I 90

926,056

$-

20,720,351

2,868,704

s22,988,455 s|,802,246
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The amounts reported as deferred outflows related to employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date

will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as

defened outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

OPERS Plan

Net Pension ExPense
r''11):,2?l

9,437,517
970

$ r0.673,911

Actuqrial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July l,2023,actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial valuation date:

Measurement date of net pension liability:
Actuarial cost method:

Asset valuation method for contributions:

Asset valuation method for assets under GASB 68

Long-term expected rate ofreturn:
Discount rate:

lnflation
Salary increases, including inflation:
Mortality:

Asset Class

U.S. Large Cap Equity

U.S. Small Cap Equity

Global Equity ex-US

Core Fixed Income

Long Term Treasuries

US TIPS

Total

2023
IulY 1,2023

June30,2023
Entry age

Five-year moving average

Fair value of assets

6.5o/o

6.s%
2.5o/o

3.25o/oto 9.25o/o

Pub-2010 Below Median, General

membership Active/ Retiree Healthy
Mortality table

2022
IrilY 1,2022

June 30,2022
Entry age

Five-year moving average

Fair value of assets

6.5%
6.s%
2.5o/o

3.5ohto 9.25o/o

Pub-20 l0 Below Median, General

membership Active/ Retiree

Healthy MortalitY table

100.0%

Actuarial assumptions are based upon the most recent experience study, which covered the three-year period ending

June 30, 2022.The experience study report is dated April12,2023'

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was

determined using a lognormal distribution analysis in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of

return (expected retums, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset

class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate ofreturn by weighting the expected future

real rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset

allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class used in the June 30,2019,

experience study, are summarized in the following table:

Real Rate of Return

5 'lo/o

5.0

8.2

1.9

2.1

1.8

Singte Discount Rate. Thediscount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 6'5%o for 2023 and 6'5Vo for

ZOiZ,.tneprojection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
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members and the employees will be made at the current contribution rate as set out in state statute. Based on those

assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future

benefit payments of cunent plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on pension plan

investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The

discount rate determined does not use a municipal bond rate.

Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount

Rate. Thefollowing presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated using

the discount rate of 6.5%o, as well as what the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower 5.5%) or l-percentage-point higher (7 '5%)

than the current rate:

2023

Proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

17o Decrease to discount
Rate (5.5%)

$40, I 58,5 12

Current Discount Rate L7o Increase to
(6.5%) Discount Rate (7.5olo)

$10,396,718 (s14,627,729)

2022
17o Decrease to Discount

Rate (5.5%)

s44,798,622

Current Discount Rate
(6.s%)

s18,277,656

1olo Increase to
discount Rate (7.5%)

(s4, 1 5 1,396)Proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

pension plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is

available in separately issued financial statements available at www.opers'ok.gov.

Payables to the Pension PIan

On December 31,2023, and2022,the Authority has outstanding payables to OPERS of $539,350 and $555,186,

respectively, related to December 2023 and2022 employer, employee, and voluntary contributions, which are

payable in ihe following month. These amounts are included in accounts payable on the Statements of Net Position.

Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement Plan

General Information about the Pension Plan

plan Description. Legislation passed during 2003 mandated that any lake patrolmen and dispatchers hired on or after

July l, 200j, shall pu.ti"iput" as members of tn" OLenS Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee-

defined benefit retiremeni plan administered by the Oklahom aLaw Enforcement Retirement System (OLERS), a

component unit of the State. The OLERS Planprovides retirement, disability, and death benefits to its members and

beneficiaries, primarily state employees providing law enforcement. The benefits provided are established and may

be amended fy tne legislature of th. stut.. Three of the Authority's patrolmen elected to transfer from the OPERS

plan to the OLERS plan under Oklahoma Statues, Title 47, Section 2-375, which provided for Authority lake

patrolmen and dispatchers as of June 30,2003, to make an irrevocable written election by January 1,2004, to either

pay tf,e difference between the amount transferred between the plans or receive eligible prorated service credit as

defined in statute. Oklahoma Statutes, Title 47, Sections 2-300, et seq., established the OklahomaLaw Enforcement

Retirement Board to administer this retirement system.

SB 1388, as codified in Oklahoma Statutes, Title 47, Sections 902, et seq., placed all of the Authority's public safety

officers hired after July 1, 2016, under the OPERS plan as hazardous duty employees'

-50-



The System issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial and required supplementary 
_

information for OLERS. That annual report may be obtained online at www.olers.state.ok.us, by writing to OLERS,

421 NW l3th St, Suite 100, oklahoma city, oK 73103 or by calling l-877-213-0856.

vesting. OLERS requires ten years of credited service to be eligible to vest.

Benefits Provided. Employees can begin receiving full, unreduced retirement benefits after twenty years of service or

at the age of 62 with ten full years of full-time equivalent employment.

The benefit on or after normal retirement is2.5Yo of the greater of final average salary or the salary paid to active

employees as described under oosalary considered" multiplied by the years and completed months of credited service.

There is no maximum service.

Contributions. System members and the Authority are required to contribute to the oLERS Plan at a rate set by

statute. These contributions are established and may be amended by the legislature of the State. Each member

participates based on gross salary earned (excluding overtime). The Authority's patrolmen and dispatchers

participating in the OtgRS plan contributed 8.0%, and the Authority contributed 10Yo of total base salary through

bctober 2012.Beginning November 20l2,the Authority contribution rates increased to I loh of total base salary.

Additional funds ire also provided by the State of Oklahoma as summarized in the table below. Non-employer

contributions are recorded as non-oplrating revenue in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses' and Changes in Net

Position.

During the reporting period for 2023 and2022, the OLERS recognized $131,609 and $146,781 in contributions from

the Authority, respectively.

Contribution rates as of December 31,2023, and2022, are as follows:

Contribution Rate

License Agency Fees equals to l.ZVoof Driver's License taxes, plus 5o% of Insurance

Premium Tax
10%o of actual base salary until Octobet 31,2012, and l1%o ofactual base salary as of
November 1,2012
8% of paid salary. Accumulated contributions after tax up to December 3 1 , 1 989, and

before-tax after December 31, 1989

pension Liabitities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outjtows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions

For purposes of measuringthe net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions

to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by

the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due

and payable in accordance with the benefit terms, investments are reported at fair value.

On December 31,2023,the Authority reported a liability of $3,633,407 for its proportionate share of the net pension

liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate

the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,2023. The Authority's proportion of

the net pension liability was based on the Authority's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the

contributions of all participating employers. On June 30,2023,the Authority's proportion was 1.1013% which is a

28%o decrease from the prior year. For the year ended December 3 I, 2023,Ihe Authority recognized pension expense

of $757,533.

Category
State

Agency

Member
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On June 30, 2022, the Authority's proportion was | .534%o, which is a 2.22o/o increase over prior year. For the year

ended December 31, 2022,the Authority reported a liability of $3,017,991 and recognized pension expense of
$591,214.

On December 31,2023,the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

OLERS Plan2023
Deferred Outflows

of Resources
$1,214,562

Deferred lnflows of
Resources

$50,444 ,

67,882
Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumption

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments

Employer contributions subsequent to the measure date

Change in proportion

Total

799,371

78?406

29,103 445,050

$2,121,442 s563,376

On December 31,2022,the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

OLERS Plan2022
Deferred Outflows

of Resources
s124,127

Deferred lnflows of
Resources

$ 103,018

125,554
Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes in assumption

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments

Employer contributions subsequent to the measure date

Change in proporlion

Total

1,318,503

69,197

58,068 80,463

$ 1,569,895 $309,035

The amounts reported as deferred outflows related to employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date

will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension

expense as follows:

OLERS Plan

Year Ended December 31 Net Pension Expenses
s378,112
246,860
593,285
243,411

17 992

2024
2025
2026

, 2027
2028
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Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1,2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

2g2023

Actuarial valuation date:

Measurement date of net Pension
liability:
Actuarial cost method:

Asset valuation method for
contributions:

Asset valuation method for assets

under GASB 68:

Long-term exPected rate ofreturn
Discount rate:

Salary increases:

Inflation:
Seniority/Merit:

Mortality

Iuly 1,2023
June 30,2023

Entry age

Five-year moving average of expected
and actual market values

Fair value of assets

'1.50

7.5%

2.7s%

3.5o/o - 10.0o/o, including inflation

Pub-2010 Public SafetY Retirees

Amount-Weighted MortalitY Table
with rates set forward two Years,

projected generationally using Scale
I|'4P-2021

Iuly 1,2022
June30,2022

Entry age

Five-year moving average of
expected and actual market values

Fair value ofassets

7.5%

7.s%

2:75%

3.5% - 10.0%, including inflation

Pub-2010 Public SafetY Retirees

Amount-Weighted MortalitY
Table with rates set forward two

years, proj ected generationallY
using Scale MP-2021

Actuarial assumptions used in the July l,2023,valuation are based upon an experience study conducted using

experience from the five-year period ending lune 30,2021.

Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was

determined uring u log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of

retum (expected retums, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed for each major class. These ranges

were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return

by the target asset allocation percentages and adding expected inflation.

The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption (30 to 50 years) and is not expected to change absent a

significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market

that alters expected returns in future years.
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The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class, as provided

by the System's investment consultant, are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return

Target Allocation

Core Bonds

Core Plus

Multi-Sector
U.S. Large Capacity

U.S. SmallCapacity
Intemational Developed Equity

Emerging Market Equity

Long/Short Equity

Private Equity

Core Real Estate

Value Added Real Estate

5.33%
s.64

6.29'
g.s2'

I 1.36

10.81

ri.os

13.30

9.29

10.79

Total 100%

Singte Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 7 .5Yo was used to measure the total pension liability. This single

discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.5% for both the June 30,

2023, and June 30, 2022,measurement dates. A municipal bond rate was not used in determining the discount rate.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan contributions from members, state

agencies, insurance premium taxes, and other state sources would be made at the current contribution rates set out in

state statue.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all

projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on

pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount

Rate. The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated using

the discount rate of 7 .5%o, as well as what the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (6.5%) or l-percentage-point

higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

2023

Proportionate share ofthe net
pension liability (asset)

17" Decrease to discount
Rate (6.5%)

s5,599,192

Current Discount Rate 17o Increase to
(7.5%) Discount Rate (8.5%)

$3,633,407 $2,010,965

2022

Proportionate share ofthe net
pension liability (asset)

17o Decrease to Discount
Rate (6.5%)

$5,222,408

Current Discount Rate
(7.5%)

$3,017,991

17o Increase to
discount Rate (8.5%)

$1,119,250
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is

available in separately issued financial statements available at www.olers.state.ok.us.

Payables to the Pension PIan

On December 31,2023, and2022, the Authority has outstanding payables to OLERS of $17,521 and $19,283,
respectively, related to December 2023 and2022, employer, employee, and voluntary contributions, which are

payable in the following month. These amounts are included in accounts payable on the Statements of Net Position.

Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Defined Contribution Plan

Ln2014, the Oklahoma Legislature enacted legislation in HB 2630 requiring a Defined Contribution System be

established by the OPERS for most state employees first employed by a participating State employer on or after

November 1,2015. This bill is codified in Oklahoma Statutes as Title 74, Section 935.1, et seq.Employees of the

Authority who first became employees on or after November I , 2015 , and have no prior participation in OPERS must
participate in the mandatory Defined Contribution Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section  0l(a) and 457(b) and Title 590, Chapter 40 of the Oklahoma Administrative Code. The Defined
Contribution Plan is known as Pathfinder. Pathfinder and its related Trust(s) are intended to meet the requirements of
the Internal Revenue Code. Pathfinder is administered by the OPERS.

Contribution rates are established by Oklahoma Statute and may be amended by the Oklahoma Legislature. For 2015,

the initial period of implementation, employees must make mandatory employee contributions of 4.5o/o of pretax

salary to the 401(a) plan and may make additional voluntary contributions to the 457(b) plan, subject to the

maximum deferral limit allowed under the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are vested 100% for all employee

contributions. The Authority must make mandatory contributions of 6% of the employee's pretax salary andTYoif
the employee elects to participate in the 457(b) plan. Employees become vested for the employer contributions based

on an established vesting schedule. The amount of the Authority's contributions for Pathfinder for the year ended

December 31,2023,and2022, was approximately $1,099,445 and $869,433, respectively.

Additionally, in order to reduce the liabilities of the defined contribution plan, the Authority is required to contribute
the difference between the established 16.5Vo defined benefit employer contribution rate and the amount required to

match the participating employees' contribution in the defined contribution plan. The amount contributed by the

Authority for the year ended December 31,2023, and2022, to meet this requirement is $1,561 ,673 and$.1,232,573,
respectively. The Authority had outstanding payables to OPERS for the defined benefit plan for the year ended

December 31,2023, and2022, of $173,765 and$143,479, respectively, which were payable in the following month.

Oklahoma State Employees Deferred Compensation Plan

Plan Description. Employees of the Authority may also participate in the Oklahoma State Employees Deferred
Compensation Plan (the "State Plan"), a voluntary defened compensation plan administered by OPERS. The State

Plan is a defined contribution plan available to all Authority employees, which permits participants to defer receipt of
a portion of their salary until future years as authorized by Section 457 of the Intemal Revenue Code and in
accordance with the provisions of Oklahoma Statutes, Title74, Sections 1701, et seq. The State Plan is established by
and may be amended by the Legislature of the State. Oklahoma Statutes assign the authority for management and

operation of the State Plan to the Board of Trustees of the OPERS. The minimum amount allowable to be deferred
under the State Plan is $25 per month. Under state law, each employee is eligible to receive a $25 monthly matching
contribution from the Authority to be deposited in a a0l(a) retirement account. Employee contributions to the Plan

totaled $9 I 8,784 and $965,056 for the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The Authority paid

matching contributions and administrative fees of $ 106,875 and $ I 14,045 for the years ended December 31, 2023,

and2022, respectively
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GRDA Postemployment Healthcare Plan

plan Descripfraz. GRDA Postemployment Healthcare Plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan

administered by the Authority. GRDA Postemployment Healthcare Plan provides medical and dental insurance

benefits to eligible retirees. In Novembe r 2007 , the Authority's Board of Directors authorized the Authority to

subsidize $200 per month for eligible retirees, effective January 1, 2008. This stipend is provided for life to

employees hired prior to Novembe r l, 2015. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph

4 of GASB 75. The Plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Benefits Provided. The OPEB plan provides for employee and dependent healthcare coverage from the date of

retirement to age 65, provided the participant was covered by the plan before retiring. The participant can elect to

enroll in spousal coverage. Surviving spouses may continue in the plan until age 65. Spouses do not receive the $200

per month subsidy.

Employees Covered by the PIan: The following table details the Authority's number of employees covered by the

benefit terms as of January 1,2022:

Participant Data
Active participants:

Employees hired prior to lll0ll20l5 and eligible for $200
subsidy
Employees hired I 1l0ll20l5 or later and not eligible for $200

subsidy
Total active participants

December 3112023 ' December 31,2022

Inactive participants entitled to but not yet receiving benefits

165

487

165

487

Inactive participants receiving benefits:

Retirees
Covered spouses (below age 65)

Total inactive participants receiving benefits

297
27

324324

Total Participants 811 8il

Funding Poticy. The contributions of plan members and the Authority are established and may be amended by the

Board of Directors within the limits of Oklahoma statutes. The contribution is based on estimated pay-as-you-go

financing requirements. For the years ended December 31,2023, and2022, the Authority contributed $706,913 and

$697 ,705, respectively, to the plan, which consisted entirely of current premiums and included no additional

contribution to prefund benefits.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumption. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the

benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan

members) at the time of each valuation and the histoiical pattern of sharing the benefit costs between the employer

and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to

reduce the effects ofshort-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value ofassets' consistent

with the long-term perspective of the caiculations. The total OPEB liability in the January 1,2023, actuarial valuation

was determined using the following assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date

Inflation
Discount rate (from the Bond BuYer

CO-20lndex)
Salary Increases

Healthcare cost trend rates

Actuarial cost method

Mortality

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
Balance at December 31,2022

Changes for the year

Service Cost
lnterest on Total OPEB LiabilitY
Difference between exPected and

actual experience

Changes in assumPtions

Employer contributions
Benefit payments, including
employee refunds

Net changes

Balance at December 31,2023

2023
January 1,2023

23%
3.72%

Variable from 9.7 5o/o to 2.50%o

based on age and sewice grouP

2022 -2023 at 5 .9 0o/o decreasing

0.2o/o to 2024, Ihen decreasing bY

0.3oh to 2025, then decreasing bY

0.2oh to 2026, then decreasing bY

0.3ohto2027Io an ultimate rate of
4.8Yo for 2027 and beYond

Entry Age Normal

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans

General Mortality Table weighted by

Headcount projected bY MP-2021 as

ofJanuary 1,2023

2022
January 1,2022

2.3Yo

2.06%

Variable from 9.7 5%o to 2'50oh

based on age and service grouP

2022-2023 at 5.90%o decreasing

0.2o/o to 202 4, Ihen decreas ing bY

0 .3Yo Io 2025, then decreasing bY

0.2o/o to 2026, Ihen decreasing bY

0.3o/oto2027 to an ultimate rate of
4.8oh for 2027 and beYond

Entry Age Normal

Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans

General MortalitY Table weighted
by Headcount Projected bY MP-

2021 as ofJanuary 1,2022

Changes in the Total OqEB Liabitity.Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in discount rate

from2.060/oin2022to3.72yoin2023.Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for the year ended December 31,2023

Total OPEB LiabilitY
$ 18,445,087

545,247
378,624
(16,202)

(2,580,554)

(1,227,311)

Plan FiduciarY Net
Position

$

Net OPEB
Liability

$18,445,087

545,247
378,624
(16,202)

(2,580,554)
(1,227,311)1,227,311

(1,227,311)

Q.900. (2.900

$ls s-
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For the year ended December 31,2022

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability TotalOPEB Liability
s20,714,763

870,855
446,029

(1,414,472)
(1,073,317)

(1,098,77l)

Balance at December 31,2021
Changes for the year

Service Cost
Interest on Total OPEB Liability
Difference between expected and

actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Employer contributions
Benefit payments, including
employee refunds
Net changes

Balance at December 31,2022

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position

$

Net OPEB
Liabilitv

$20,714,763

870,855
446,029

(1,414,472)
(1,073,317)
(1,098,771)7,098,771

(1,098,771)

$1 5 087 $- $ 18.445.087

Sensitivity of the Total OqEB liabitity to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the Authority's total

OpEB liability calculated using the 2023 discount rate of 2.060/o, as well as what the Authority's total OPEB liability

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (l .06%) ot 1-percentage-point

higher (3.06%) than the current rate:

2023

17o Decrease to
Discount Rate Q.72"/o)

Current Discount
Rate (3.72oh)

17o Increase to
Discou nt Rate (4.7 2"/o)

Total OPEB liability $ 17.024.115 $1s .s44.891 $ 14-260-231

The following presents the Authority's total OPEB liability calculated using the 2022 discount rale of 2.l2Yo, as well

as what the Authority's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-

point lower (1 .12%) or I -percentage-point higher (3 .12%) than the current rate:

2022

TotalOPE,B liability

1%o Decrease to
Discount Rate (1.067o)

s22.372.685

Current Discount
Rate (2.06%)

17o Increase to
Discount Rate (3.067o)

$ 18.445.087 $ 16.788.900
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Sensitivity of the Totat OPEB tiabitity to changes in the healthcare cost trend rate. The following presents the

Authority's total OPEB liability calculated using the 2023 healthcare cost trend rate of 5.9%o, as well as what the

Authority's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower

(4.9%o decreasing to 4.7Yo) or l-percentage-point higher (6.9%o decreasing to 6.7Yo) than the current rate:

2023

Total OPEB liability

17o Decrease to Healthcare
Cost Trend Rate

(4.9V' decreasing to 4.7oh)

$ 1s"203.828

Current Healthcare Cost
Trend Rate

(5.9% decreasing to 5.7Y")
$ 15.544"891

17o Increase to Healthcare
Cost Trend Rate

(6.9"/0 decreasing to 6.7"h)
$ 1s.941.017

The following presents the Authority's total OPEB liability calculated using the 2022healthcare cost trend rate of
5.g11o,as well as what the Authority's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is

1-percentage-point lower (4.9o/o decreasing to 4.7%) or l -percentage-point higher (6.9o/o deueasing to 6.7Yo) than the

current rate:

2022

Total OPEB liabilify

17o Decrease to Healthcare
Cost Trend Rate

(4.9V" decreasing to 4.7"h)

Current Healthcare Cost
Trend Rate

(5.9o decreasing to 5,7oh)

$ 18,445,087

17o Increase to Healthcare
Cost Trend Rate

(6.9% decreasing to 6,7"h)
$ 18,878,606$1 7

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB. For the

year ended December 31,2023,the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $432,771. For the year ended December

31,2022,the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $1,399,273. The following table indicates the components of
the recognized OPEB expense:

Components of OPEB ExPense

Service Cost
Interest on Total OPEB Liability -over measurement

Recognition of Experience Changes

Recognition of Assumption Changes

Total OPEB Expenses recognized

2023 2022

$545,247
378,624

(185,220)
(305,880)
s432,771

$870,855
446,079

(182,019)
264,408

sl,399,273

As of December 31, 2023,the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

OPEB Plan-2023
Summary of deferred outflows and inflows

Difference between projected and actual
experiences
Changes of actuarial assumptions
Employer contributions - subsequent
to measurement date

Total

Deferred Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

$926, I 5 I$ 1 01 ,459

872,044

706,912

2,786,253
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As of December 31, 2022,the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB from the following sources:

OPEB Plan-2022
Summary of deferred outflows and inflows Deferred Outflows of

Resources
Deferred Inflows of

Resources
$1,192,096Difference between projected and actual

experiences
Changes of actuarial assumptions
Employer contributions - subsequent

to measurement date

Total

$198,385

1,473,696

697,705

1,113,231

s2.30s,327$2^369.786

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to OPEB will be

recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

OPEB Plan - 2023

Net OPEB Expense
($390,034)

(705,1 78)

(945,677)
(667,221)
(30,791)

Year ended December 31

2024

2025

2026

2027

202,8

($2,738, 90l)

8. OTHERRELATED-PARTYTRANSACTIONS

The primary organizations considered related parties are those municipal, industrial, electric cooperative, tribal, and

othei govemmental organizations or lake area organizations that have representatives serving on the Authority's

Boardlf oirectors. The primary transactions in the ordinary course of business with these related parties include

sales of electrical power and transmission and memberships in related trade associations or organizations, or tourism

and economic development activities associated with the management of the lakes, including commercial and private

dock permit fees.

OG&E operates the Redbud facility under an operating agreement with the Authority and OMPA and allocates

certain costs and expenses attributible to Redbud to the Authority and OMPA, in accordance with their undivided

ownership interests-see further discussion of Redbud facility in "Joint Ownership" in Note 1 to Financial Statements,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Authority makes and receives commitments for purchases of coal, natural gas,

wind power; and long-term service agreements. In addition, in the normal course of business, the Authority enters

into agreements, which commit the Authority to provide varying amounts of electric power to its customers.

Manalement olthe Authority does not believe the honoring of these commitments will have any material adverse

effect on the Authority.
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The Authority had construction contractual commitments on December 31,2023, of approximately $203,520,000 for

equipment and construction contracts. Major projects include the construction of GREC 4 for approximately

$i3d,SSZ,OO0; hydro projects for approximately $12,552,000 and transmission lines and substations for

approximately $ 1 0,4 I 6,000.

The Authority had contractual commitments as of December 3 l, 2023, for long-term service agreements at the

Redbud facility for the maintenance of the gas and steam turbines of approximately $5 1 .2 million through the year

2028.TheAuthority had contractual commitments as of December 31,2023, for natural gas at the Redbud facility of

approximately $3.2 million through January 2023, as well as for transportation of natural gas to the Redbud facility

of approximately $3.9 million through March 31,2024.

The Authority had contractual commitments as of December 3 I , 2023, fot long-term service agreements at the

GREC 3 facility for the maintenance of the gas and steam turbines of approximately $38.1 million through the year

2030. The Authority had contractual commitments as of December 31,2023, for natural gas at the GREC 3 facility of

approximately $3.6 million through March 2023, as well as for transportation of natural gas to the GREC 3 facility of

approximately $121.5 million through March 31,2047.

The Authority had contractual commitments as of December 3 I , 2023, fot long-term wind power purchase

agreements of approximately $402.0 million through the year 2037 andfor customer generation capacity agreements

of approxim ately $216.9 million through the yeat 2042'

In 2015, the Authority established an unsecured letter of credit with Bank of Oklahoma to meet the requirements for

participating in the SFP Integrated Marketplace. On December 31,2023, the line of credit was $8.0 million. The

ietter of credit expires May il, 2025,buthas an auto-renewal clause. The Authority did not utilize any portion of the

letter of credirin2022 or 2023.

ln 2022, The Authority entered into a revolving credit agreement as an unsecured line of credit not to exceed

$100,000,000 with Wells Fargo Bank. This line of credit was established as part of a mitigation plan developed

following the 2021Winter Storm Uri to have more flexibility to quickly access cash in such an event. This line of

credit is available to be used to support the normal operations and short-term capital requirements for the Authority.
per General Bond Resolution No. 5 107, this line of credit is a subordinate lien to the revenue bonds. The Authority

did not utilize this line of credit in2022 or 2023, and elected to terminate it in November 2023.

For many years, landowners Llpstream of Pensacola Dam have initiated litigation against GRDA in response to

flooding events based on theories of inverse condemnation, trespass, nLrisance, etc. The ALrthority is currently

involved in active litigation with the city of Miami, Oklahoma and over 400 individual plaintiffs in the area related to

flooding from 2007 to 201 L The Authority has insurance coverage that it believes would cover any adverse

judgement in the flooding litigation claims and continues to carry a liability in the amount of its insurance deductible

in the financial statements as of December 3l,2023 '

10. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE COSTS

The Authority maintains a coal combustion residuals (CCR) landfill in Chouteau, Oklahoma. The Authority accounts

for this CCR landfill in accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, Accountingfor Municipal Solid Waste Landfill

Closure and post closure Care Costs. State and federal regulations will require the Authority to place a final cover

on the CCR site when it discontinues depositing of CCR and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring

functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and post closure costs will only be paid near or

after the date of discontinuance of use of the landfill, GASB Statement No. I 8 requires proprietary funds to report a

portion ofthese costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity and utilization.
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This CCR landfill has a total capacity of 5,131,024 cubic yards, of which an estimated 4,450,998 cubic yards have

been used through December 3l , 2023 . The remaining useful life at December 3 1, 2023, was approximately 19 years,

The amount recorded as a liability for the closure and post closure costs, included in Other Noncurrent Liabilities at

December 31,2023, and2022, was $6,973,772 and 57,062,218, respectively. These amounts are based on 91Yo and

glohlandfillutilization as of December 31, 2023,and2022,respectively. The Authority will recognize the remaining

estimated cost of closure and post closure care, of approximately $776,038, as the remaining estimated capacity is

filled. Amounts are estimated using what it would cost to perform all closure and post closure care in 2023. Actual

costs are subject to change resulting from inflation or deflation, changes in technology, or changes in applicable laws

or regulations.

The Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) has certain closure and post closure care financial

assurance requirements. Each year, anauditor performs procedures to ensure that the Authority meets these

requirements.

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

General Bond Resolution No. 5107 requires the Authority to, in each case where it is obtainable at a reasonable rate

and on reasonable terms, insure its facilities, maintain liability insurance, and bond certain officers and employees. In

general, all insurance coverage, including property (all risk coverage, including earthquake and flood), equipment,

aircraft.,employment practices liability, directors and officers liability, excess liability (including an endorsement for

certified ooacts of terrorism" as defined in the Federal Terrorism Risk Insurance Act), is purchased from private

insurance carriers through the State of Oklahoma Risk Management Department (State Risk Management) of the

Office of Management and Enterprise Services. State Risk Management contracts with a third-party insurance broker

for brokerage services and advice. The Authority also participates in the State of Oklahoma's Consolidated Workers'

Compensation Program, a self-insured program operated by States Risk Management. A private insurance carrier

provides excess insurance coverage for the Consolidated Workers' Compensation Program and a private company

provides claims administration services. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of

the past three years.

Concentration of revenues from a single external customer increases credit and market concentration risks. The

Authority had one customer that account ed for 32Yo of total operating revenues in 2023 and 31%o in 2022.

In addition, the Authority is subject to generation supply and market price risks, which are continually evaluated as to

level of risk and how to best mitigate exposure to loss. The Authority continued its hedging program throughout

2023,to hedge price and volatility risk relative to future natural gas commodity prices.

As of December 3 I , 2023, and 2022, the Authority had the following fair value balances and notional amounts of
derivative instruments and the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments:

Fair Value at December 31,2023

Business-Type Activities

Notional
Amount

(MMBTUS)Amount

Cash flow hedges:

Commodity forward (swap)

Changes in Fair
Value Classification

Derivative
instruments$12,651,255
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Fair Value at December 31,2022

Business-Type Activities

Cash flow hedges:

Commodity forward (swap)

Changes in Fair
Value

$9,028,060

Classification ; Amount

Derivative
instruments

(s4,026,920)

Notional
Amount

(MMBTUS)

7,642,500
l
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The following table displays the objective and terms of the Authority's hedging derivative instruments outstanding

on December 31,2023, along with the credit rating of the associated counterparty.

Item Type Objective

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge of changes in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Terms

Pay $3.950/MMBTU;
, scheduled monthly

settlements based on 10,000

MMBTUs/day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

' settlement date

Pay $3.935/lr.{MBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at
settlement date

Pay $3.780/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.735/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

pai $:.osdrMMsru;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at
settlement date

Pay $3.500/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.432lMMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at
settlement date

Pay $3.442/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Counterparty/
Credit Rating

BOKF "A."

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

..BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

*BB-"

Notional
Amount

(MMTBU's)

3,350,000

Effective
Date

Maturity
Date

L

K

o

P

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

12127123 11126124

300,000 02lll23 2127/24

1,675,000 03/8123 11126124

1,675,000 03110123 11126124

1,675,000 031t5123 l1126124

1,675,000 03131123 11126/24

837,500 0416123 lr/26/24

837,500 04/6123 11126124

N

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)
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Item Type

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Objective

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

5t26t23

155,000 0s122123 07129124

1,825,000 06ll/23 lll27l25

155,000 0611123 0616/24

155,000 06ll/23 0616124

72,500 08118123 01127124

72,500 08/26123 01127/24

72,500 09/21123 01127124

'77,500 09121123 04126/24

Notional
Amount

(MMTBU's)

I 5 5,000

Effective
Date

Maturity
Date Terms

Pay $3.300/IVIMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.350/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.850/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and HenrY

Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.195/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ day and HenrY

Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.24O/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.798A4MBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.650/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and HenrY

Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.450/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and HenrY
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.970/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and HenrY

Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Counterparty/
Credit Rating

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

*BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

*BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

o

R

06/26124

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash
' flows due to market Price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

S

T

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

U

w

X

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge of changes in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Y

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas
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Z Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

75,000 09121123

72,s00 09t5123

77,500 0915123

77,500 09126124

77,500 09126124

145,000 t0ll9l23

71,500 10119123

155,000 10/19123

155,000 l0ll9l23

9t2,500 l0ll9l23

05129124 Pay$3.093/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

01127124 Pay$3.599/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

02/27124 Pay $3.296/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

06126124 Pay$3.215lMMBTUT
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

07/29124 Pay $3.252lMMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

ll2'7124 Pay $3.555AvlMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

2127124 Pay$3.280/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub Pricing Point at

settlement date

06/26/24 Pay $3.320/lvlMBTUl
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

O'..129124 Pay$3.350/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ daY and Henry
Hub pricing Point at

settlement date

ll126/24 Pay $3.998/MMBTU;
scheduled monthlY
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ daY and HenrY

Hub Pricing Point at

settlement date

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

.,BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-''

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

*BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge of changes in cash

flows due to market price

fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

AA Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market Price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge of changes in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

AA
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AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

AA

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

912,500 lll'7123 11/26/24

912,500 llll7/23 11126124

gt2,5o0 11120123 11126124

145,000 11120123 01127124

77,500 11120123 02124124

'72,500 11129123 0l/2'7124

72,500 l2ll/23 01127 /24

77 ,500 l2l4l23 2/27124

77,500 t2l4/23 6126/24

77 ,500 t2l4/23 7129124

Pay $4.110/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay S+.0:olMNreru;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $:.iizltuNaeru;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.043A,IMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.877lMMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.760/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $).ZZOltvltvtgtU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.580/\4MBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry

. Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.894/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.948/\{MBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at
settlement date

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

*BB.''

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

AA Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge of changes in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

AA

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Hedge of changes in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash

flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

AA
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Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of

' natural gas

. g"dg" ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

77,s00 r2l4l23

140,000 t2l6/23

I 5 5,000

837,500

12/Lt/23

12/12/23

8t28124

U27125

t2/28124

tu26l24

155,000 l2llll23 11126124

Pay $2.950/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.855/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.443/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $3.685/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 5,000

MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at

settlement date

Pay $2.486/MMBTU;
scheduled monthly
settlements based on 2,500
MMBTUs/ day and Henry
Hub pricing point at
settlement date

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

*BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

StoneX
Financial Inc

"BB-"

AA

AA

AA

AA

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of

, natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Commodity
forward
contract
(swap)

Hedge ofchanges in cash
flows due to market price
fluctuations related to
expected purchase of
natural gas

Contracts are accounted for in accordance with GASB Statement No. 53, which addresses recognition, measurement,

and disclosure related to derivative instruments with reporting required in the Statements of Net Position or

recognized on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, depending on effectiveness.

Contiacts are evaluated to determine whether they meet the definition of derivative instruments and, if so, whether

they effectively hedge the expected change in cash flow associated with natural gas prices. The current liability for

the fair value of the hedges currently resides in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and total $16'7 million.

Effectiveness testing is performed at the end of each month using the consistent critical terms method and, as of
December 31,2023, the tests concluded that all of the Authority's derivative instruments are effective. If the

derivative instrument(s) passes effectiveness testing, the change in fair value of the instrument(s) is deferred in the

Statements of Net Position and then recorded as fuel expense in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes

in Net position during the production cycle. If deemed to be ineffective, the change in fair value of the instrument(s)

is immediately recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

CreditRisfr.. The Authority is exposed to credit risk on hedging derivative instruments that are in asset positions. The

aggregate fair value of hedging derivate instruments in asset positions, as of December 3 1 , 2023, is $0. This

represents the maximum loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the counterparty failed to perform as

contracted. This maximum exposure is reduced by $16,678,175 of liabilities included in netting arrangements with

the Authority's counterparty. All of the Authority's hedging derivative instruments are held with two counterparties,

which have S&p Long Term Issuer Credit Ratings of 'oA-" and o'BB-". Credit risk is mitigated using credit thresholds

based on each party's credit rating. If either party exceeds their threshold, collateral can be demanded, net of the

effect of applicable netting arrangements. Collateral can be posted in the form of cash or letters of credit. A monthly

credit report is prepared by the Authority's Middle Office and is provided to the Authority's Risk Oversight

Committee for monitoring of credit risk related to hedging derivatives.

Basis Risk: The Authority is exposed to basis risk on its commodity forward contracts because the expected

commodity purchase wilL price based on a pricing point (Enable Gas or OneOK) that is different than the pricing
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point at which the forward contract is expected to settle (Henry Hub). The Authority is hedging the Henry Hub
portion of the gas price only, not the basis for the individual pipeline(s).

Termination Risft.. The Authority or its counterparty may terminate a derivate instrument if the other party fails to
perform under the terms of the contract. Termination may also occur in the event of the following, as defined in the

contract: illegality, force majeure event, tax event, tax event upon merger, or additional termination event. Additional
termination event is defined in the contract as the Authority engaging in any transaction that does not have as its sole

purpose to hedge against price risk for its use in its business ofnatural gas or is in any way intended to speculate on

any commodity price. Termination risk is associated with all of the Authority's derivatives up to the fair value

amounts.

12 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In the first quarter of 2023,The Authority sought bids for a cost-of-service study. Guernsey was hired, and the

study was completed in the fourth quarter. In the first quarter of 2024, the Authority hosted several customer

meetings, and had several comment periods, before arriving at its final rate design. The final proposal was

recommended to the board of directors on April 10, 2024, and the resolution was approved unanimously. The

three-year implementation plan for incorporating the approved rate changes includes an aggregate increase of
1.48o/oin2024, effective October 1,2024, an aggregate increase of 2.74o/oin2025, effective October 1,2025,

and an aggregate increase of 3.39ohin2026, effective October 1,2026.

***{< *t *
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)



GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF'THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
(UNAUDITED) OKLAHOMA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31,2023

December 31,2022

December 31,2021

December 31,2020

December Zl,)OtS
December 31,2018

December 31,2017

December 31,2016

December 31,2015

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31,2023

December 31,2022

December 31,2021

December 31,2020

December 31,2019

December 3 l, 2018

December 31,2017

December i1,20l6
December 31,2015

2.27240/o

i..2735

2.2383

2.2776

2.3778

2.4118

2.3117

2.2462

2.1715

$6,717,336

6,42A,350'

6, I 50,504

6,109,333

6,258,254

6,309,340'

6,218,2s4

a,eq,ets
6,333,952

12,498,665

21,890,211

7,810,649

$32,991,556

li,en,seq'
33,666,081

34,80 l,ls3
35,g42,188

37,965,024

38,404,273

38,gg5,445

37,304,843

31.57o/o

54.38

(8s.24)

57.1r

8.81

13.53

32.54

56.14

20.94

s32,929,985

33,204,5s6

33,598,122 ,

34,266,124

35,23g,125

37,001,348,

38,300,232

3S,811,001

38,557,227

Proportionate
of the Net
Pension
Liability/
(Asset)

Proportionate
Share ofthe Net

Pension Liability/
(Asset)

$ 10,396,718

18,277,5s6

(30,042.,207)

19,874,205

3,166,970

5,1 38,1 60

Covered Payroll

Proportionate Share
, of the Net Pension

Liability/ (Asset) as

a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as

a Percentage
of the Total

Pension
Liability/
(Asset)

Contractually
Required

Contributions

Contributions in
relation to the
Contractually

required
contribution

Contribution
Deficiency

(Excess) Covered Payroll

Contributions
asa

Percentage of
Covered
Payroll

95.97o/o

92.24 ,

rt2.5l
91.59

98.63

97.96

94.28

89.48

96.00

17.260/o

17.24

16.9s

17.04

17.72

17.53

17.01

17.05'
16.A5

$5,684,1 80

5,725,382

5,696,252

5,838,606

6,243,328

6,485,378

6,516,168:

6,615,357

6,343,582'

$1,033,156

698i,968

454,252

270,727

14,926

(176,03S)

(297,914)

26,318

(e,630)

The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30 in the calendar year.

The Authority is required to present the last ten fiscal years of data; however, until a full ten-year trend of data is

compiled, CnSg 6ti allows t'he presentation for those years for which information is available.

Changes in Benefit Terms

House Bill3350 provided a one-time benefit increase as of July 1,2020. Members who retired on or prior to July 1,

2015, receiv ed a 4.g%obenefit increase. Members who retired between July l, 2015, and July 1, 2018, received a

2.0yobenefiIincrease. Members who retired after July 7,2018, did not receive a benefit increase'
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Changes in Assumptions are as follows

Long-term expected rate ofreturn
Discount rate

Price inflation
Real wage growth

Proportion of the
Net Pension

Fiscal Year Ending Liability

2o2t ' zizt ', zo2o ' znls
6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 7.00%

r 6.50

2.50

0.75

6.s0
2.50

0.75

6.s0
2.s0
0.75

7.00

2.75

0.35

7.00

2.',l5

0.75

2018

7.000 ',

7.00

2.75

0.75

2017

7.00%

There were no other changes in assumptions.

: GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
: 

1A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

SCHEDULE OF'PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (UNAUDITED)
OKLAHOMA LAW ENF'ORCEMENT RETIREMENT PLAN

December 3 1,

Decimber 31,

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,
I 

December 3 1,

December 31,
' 

December 31,

December 31,

1013o/o

1.s340

1.s688

1.s344

l .5814

1.4701

1.4556

1.3370

0.8627

$131,609

146,781

154,966

145,820 ,

141,092

133,523'

134,827

136,630

s3,633,407

3,017,991

210,956

3,314,998

2,296,870

1,574,732

t,Bs.t,B4
1,63 I ,598

894,807

$1,213,525

1,351,371

1,331,109

1,342,159

1,298,190

1,222,118

t.bi,too
1,234,942

736,838

($1,879)

( 1,870)

(1,s66)

(1,817)

( l,8l e)

(e0e)

1.00

15.85

246.99 ,

2023

2022

2021

2020

20tg
201 8

2017

)0rc
20t5

Proportionate
Share ofthe Net
Pension Liability Covered Payroll

Proportionate
Share of the Net
Pension Liability

as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

2gg.41Yo

223.33

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a

Percentage ofthe
Total Pension

Liability

76.9l%0 '

84.53

98.93

82.29

87.50

90.31

87.85

8l.88
89.62

176.93

128.85

154.31

t32.12

121.44

Contractually
Required

Fiscal Year Ending , Contributions

Contributions in
Relation to the
Contractually

Required
Contribution

$ 133,488

i+C,os r

156,832

147,63,7

142,911

134,432

134,826'

136,630

81 ,430

Contribution
Deficiency

(Excess)

Contributions as a
Percentage of

Covered Payroll

December 31,2023

December 31,2022

December 31,2021

December it,zozo
December 31,2019

December 3 l, 2018

December 31,2017

December 31,2016

December 31,2015 81,430

Covered Payroll

$ I,171,378

tSoj,sdq'
t348,232:,

1,351,889'

1,308,269 ,

1,268;,,728

1,209,093 '

1,241,483

1,098,422'

ll.40o/o

I 1.40

11.63

10.92

10.92

10.60

I 1.15

11.01

7.41 
',

The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30 in the calendar year.

The Authority is required to present the last ten fiscal years of data; however, until a full ten-year trend of data is

compiled, GASB 68 allows the presentation for those years for which information is available.
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Changes in Benefit Terms.

House Bill 3350 provided a one-time benefit increase as of July 1,2020. Member show retired on or prior to July l,
2015, received a A.}Yobenefit increase. Members who retired between July l, 2015, and July l, 2018, received a

2.0%obenefit increase. Members who retired after July 1,2078, did not receive a benefit increase.

Changes in Assumptions.. There were six Changes in Assumption made for the valuation as of July 1,2023. There was a change

in mortality assumption to the new Pub-2010 tables, and the percent of members electing retroactive DOP was increased to 80%

for a period of four years, and the percent of members electing an immediate annuity was set to 20%o. Retirement rates,

withdrawal rates, and disability rates were also revised.

other Changes in Assumptions are as follows

Price

Salary
Increases

2023
2.75Yo

3.5o/o -

l0.0Yo,
including
inflation

2022
2.75%

3.5% -
70.jYo,

including
inflation

2021

2.75%

3.5% -
9.7sYo,

including
inflation

2020

2.75%
3.s% -
9.75Yo,

including
inflation

2019

2.75%
3.5% -

9.7soh,
including
inflation

201 8

2.75%
3.5o/o -
9.7sYo,

including
inflation

2017

2.75%

35%-
9.7504,

including
inflation

2016
3.00%
3.5% -
9.750h,

including
inflation

2015
3.00o/o

3.5Vo -

9.75%
including
inflation

GRAND RIVER DAM AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of Oklahoma)

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
(UNAUDITED) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Beginning Balance

Service Cost

Interest on Total OPEB Liability
Differ.nce between expected and

Changes in assumptions

Benefils payments, including

Net Changes

Ending Balance

78,445,087

545,247

3',78,624

(16,202)

(2,580,554)
(1,227,311)

$20,714,763
870,855

446,029

(1,414,472)

(1,073,317)
(1,098,7'.71)

$ 19,461,886

733,886

538,912
(70,134)

1,112,285
(1,062,072)

s16,980,723
564,096

685,406

435,412

1,790,433

(994,184)

$ 17,668,s68

548,426

6l 1,515

66,460

(1,025,961)
(888,28s)

(2,900,196)

$ 15,544,891

(2,269,676)

$ 18,445,087

7,252,877

s20,714,763

2,481,163 (687,845)

s 16,980,723$19,46 1,886

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

covered-employee payroll s32,929,985 $33,204,556 $33,598,122 s34,266,124

Total oPEB Liability as a percentage 47.21% 55.55% ' 61.65% 56.80%

of covered-employee payroll

$35,239,125
48.19%

The Authority is required to present the last ten fiscal years of data; however, until a full ten-year trend of data is

compiled, GASB 75 allows the presentation for those years for which information is available. No assets are

accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 7 5 to pay related benefits for the

pension/OPEB Plan.

Changes in BeneJit Terms. There were no changes of benefit terms in the Plan.

Changes in Assumptions.. Two assumption changes were made for this valuation. The discount rate on the Bond

Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index as of the newest Measurement date of January 1,2023'is3.72o/o.The
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January 1,2021, discount rate was 2.12%. The January 1,2020, discount rate was 2.74%. The January 1,2019,
discount rate was 4.10%. The mortality table was also updated to a new public sector mortality table (Pub 2010)
using the MP-2020 projection scale as of January I , 2023 . The January I , 2021 , mortality table used the MP-2020
projection scale. The January 1,2020, mortality table used the MP-2019 projection scale. The January 1,2019,
mortality table used the MP-2018 projection scale.
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G bakertitty

Report on lnternal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Gompliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

With Gove rnment Auditing Standards

lndeoendent tors' Reoort

To the Board of Directors of
Grand River Dam Authority

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gove rnment Auditing Standards issued by the

Comptroller Generai of the United States (Government Auditing Sfandards), the financial statements of Grand

Rivei Dam Authority (GRDA), which comprise GRDA's statement of net position as of December 31, 2023, and

the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then

ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

April30,2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered GRDA's internal control over

financial reporting (internai control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances for tne purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of GRDA's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on the effectiveness of GRDA's internal control.

A deficiency in internat controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstaiements on a timely basis. A materiatweakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in

internal control, such thaithere is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial

statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance'

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section

and was-not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be materialweaknesses or

significant deficie-ncies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal

control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies

may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether GRDA's financial statements are free from material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial

Itatements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our

audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Sfandards.

Baker Tilly US, LLp, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member oJ the global 1g!w91k_of Baker Tilly lnternational Ltd., the members of which

are separ-ate and independlent legal entities. @ 2020-2022 Baker Tiily4US' LLP



Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and

the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on

compliance. This report-is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the entity's internalcontroland compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.

g,/.^f"ly 04 LLr
Madison, \A/isconsin
April30,2024
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2024Worksheet for Calculating Closure and Post-closure Cost Estimates

All site data necessary to calculate estimates of closure and post-closure costs can be gathered by completing

Table E.l. Data from Table E.1 should be inserted into Tables E.2 andF.l to complete calculations'

Table E.L Site Data

Facility Name: Grand River Dam Authority

Permit Number: 3549012

Description Quantity Units

Total Permitted Area 67 acres

Active Portion
te Lined acres

Soil Lined 47 acres

Area of Largest Cell/Phase
Final

Com site Lined acfes

Soil Lined 47 acres

Perimeter F linear feet

Groundwater Monitoring
Wells 382.s

VLF

Methane Gas Probes NA VLF

Terraces NA linear feet

Letdown channels NA linear feet

Perimeter drainage ditches NA linear feet

Average Daily Flow 48.22 tons/day

Landfrll Disposal Cost $/ton
VLF : Vertical linear feet. The sum of the depths of all monitoring wells.

Table E.2 Closure Cost Estimate

Facility Name: Grand River Dam Authority

Permit Number: 3549012
Task/Service Quantitv Units Multiplier' Unit Costb Subtotal

1 Preliminary Site
Work

1.1 Conduct Site
Evaluation

1 Lump
sum

1 $4,376.08 $4,376.08

t.2 Dispose Final
Wastes
Average Daily
Flow

48.22 tons/day

Disposal Cost 0.74 tons/day 5 1s oays

waste)

NA NA

1.3 Remove
Temporary
Buildine(s)

1 lump
sum

1 $4,012.89 NA

t.4 Remove 1 lump 1 $3,275.69 $3,275.69



Equipment sum

1.5 Repair/Replace
Perimeter Fencing

linear
feet

0.25 $4.29 NA

1.6 Clean Leachate
Line(s)

I lump
sum

1 $1,982.05 NA

2 Monitoring
u

2.1 Rework/Replace
Monitoring
Wel s

382,5 VLF 0.25 $92.01 $8,798.46

2.2 Plug Abandoned
Monitoring
Well(s)

382.5 VLF 0.2s $36.83 $3,521.87

2.3 Rework/Replace
Methane Probe(s)

VLF 0.25 $79.47 NA

2.4 Plug Abandoned
Methane Probe S

VLF 0.25 $29.04 NA

2.5 Rework/Replace
Remediation
and/or Gas

Control

1 lump
sum

0.05 NA NA

J Construction
3.1 Complete Site

Grading to
include on- and

off-site borrow
AIEAS

67 acres 1 $1,735.01 $116,245.67

3.2 Construct Final
cap
Compacted On-
site Clay Cap or

151,653 cubic
yards

1 s6.23 s944,800.21

Compacted Off-
site Clay Cap or

cubic
yards

1 $9.77 NA

Install
Geosynthetic ClaY

Liner Cap

square
feet

1 s0.63 NA

aa
-).J Construct Landfill

Gas Venting
Layer



Place Sand or acres 1 $46,395.25 NA

Install Net and
Geotextile

square
feet

1 $0.46 NA

3.4 Install Passive
Landfill Gas

Vents

acres 1 $ 1,1 1 1.39 NA

3.5 Install Flexible
Membrane

square
feet

1 $0.s 1 NA

3.6 Drainage Layer
Place Sand or acres 1 $46,392.25 NA

Install Net and
Geonet

square
feet

1 $0.46 NA

).t Place On-site
Topsoil

75,827 cubic
yards

1 $2.68 $196,391.07

Place Off-site
Topsoil

cubic
yards

1 $2t.44 NA

3.8 Establish
vegetative sover,
including on- and
off-site borrow
areas

67 acres 1 $1,236.49 $82,844.83

4 Drainage/erosion
control

4.r Construct
Terraces

linear
feet

1 $1 1.23 NA

4.2 Construct
Letdown
Channels

linear
feet

1 sr22.82 NA

4.3 Clean Perimeter
Drainage Ditches

linear
feet

0.50 $8.s6 NA

5 Tasks Not
Identified

5.1 Close Temporary
Piezometers

33s VLF I s29.04 s9,128.40

6 Subtotal sr,316,806.13

7 Administrative
Services

1 lump
sum

0.10 $137,680.67

8 Technical and
Professional
Services

t lump
sum

0.12 $ 165,216.81

9 Closure
Contingency

1 lump
sum

0.10 $ 137,680.67

10 Total Final
Closure

$1,817,384.88



a. Multipliers are determined from lhe Solid Waste Finqncial Assurance Program Report, December 22,

2000.

b. Unit costs include a3.640/o inflationary adjustment for 2024.

c. New facilities: Insert the value for "W" in OAC 252:517-17-8(2). Existing facilities: Insert reported

annual tonnage for the previous year, divided by 312 operating days per year (52 weeks per year x 6
operating days per week).

d. Insert number of tons/day from above.

e. Insert landfill disposal cost per ton of waste ($/ton;.

f. Input capital cost for gas controVremediation equipment, if installed at the site.

g. Input subtotal from line 6.

h. Add rows 6 through 9.



Table F.l Post-closure Cost Estimate

Facility Name: Grand River Dam Authority

Permit Number: 3549012
Task/Service Quantity Units Multiplier' Unit

Costb
Subtotal

1 Site maintenance
1.1 Site Inspections 4 per year 30 $796.06 95.527.20

1.2 General
Maintenance 1 per year 30 $2,386.63 $71,598.90

1.3 Remediation
and/or Gas

Control
Equipment

1
lump
sum

0.3' NA NA

2 Monitoring
equipment

2.1 Rework/Replace
Monitoring
Well(s)

382.5 VLF 0.25 $92.01 $8,798.46

2.2 Plug Abandoned
Monitoring
Well(s)

382.5 VLF 0.25 $36.83
$3,521.87

2.3 Final Plugging of
Monitoring Wells

382.5 VLF I $36.83 $14,087.48

2.4 Rework/Replace
Methane Probe(s)

VLF 0.25 $79.47 NA

2.5 Plug Abandoned
Probe(s)

VLF 0.25 $29.04 NA

2.6 Final Plugging of
Methane Probes

VLF 1 s29.04 NA

2.7 Final Plugging of
Piezometer(s)

VLF 1 $29.04 NA

J Sampling and
analysis

3.1 Groundwater
Monitoring Wells t9 wells 60 $8s8.38 $978,553.20

3.2 Methane Gas

Probes
probes 60 $5s.71 NA

aa
J.J Surface Water

Monitoring Points
points 60 $103.44 NA



3.4 Leachate sample 60 $166.69 NA
4 Final cover

maintenance
4.1 Mow and Fertilize

Vegetative Cover
47 acres 30 yrs $263.3s $371,323.50

4.2 Repair Erosion,
Settlement, and
Subsidence for
On-site Soils

47 acres 60 yrs $3.82 $t0,772.40

Repair Erosion,
Settlement, and
Subsidence for
Off-site Soils

acres 30 yrs $22.84 NA

4.3 Reseed Vegetative
Cover

47 acres 0.20 $1,236.49 $11,623.01

5 Leachate
management

5.1 Clean Leachate
Line(s)

1 per year 30 (30 yrs) $2,041.31 NA

5.2 Maintain Leachate
Collection System
and Equipment

I per year 30 (30 yrs) s3,17r.26 NA

5.3 Collect, Treat,
Transport, and
Dispose of
Leachate

gallyr 30 $0.40 NA

6 Tasks not
identified

7 Subtotal $1.565.806.01

8 Administrative
Services

1
lump
sum

0.06 $93,948.36

9 Technical and
Professional
Services

1
lump
sum

0.07 sr09,606.42

10 Post-closure
Contingency

1
lump
sum

0.10 $156,580.60

11 Total Post-
closure

$1,925,941.39

a. Multipliers are determined from the Solid lilaste Financial Assurqnce Program Report, Dec.22,

2000.

b. Unit costs include a3.640/o inflationary adjustment for2024.

c. 5% of equipment capital cost, maintenance performed once per 5 yrs for 30 years (6 x 0.05:0.30)
d. Input capital cost for gas control/remediation equipment, if installed at the site.

e If the approved groundwater monitoring plan requires monitoring for alternative constituents, unit costs shall be calculated in

accordance with OAC 252:517-17-52(b) or (c).

f. Input subtotal from line 7.

g. Add lines 7 through 10.


